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�ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ĞŶĐŽŵƉĂƐƐĞƐ�ĂŶ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĨ�ŵŽƌĞ�
ƚŚĂŶ�ϱϯ͕ϬϬϬ�ƐƋƵĂƌĞ�ŬŝůŽŵĞƚƌĞƐ�ĐŽǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĂďŽƵƚ�
ƚŚĞ�ƐŝǌĞ�ŽĨ�dĂƐŵĂŶŝĂ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŬŝŶŐ�ŝƚ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƌŐĞƐƚ�>ŽĐĂů�
'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ƌĞĂ�;>'�Ϳ�ŝŶ�EĞǁ�^ŽƵƚŚ�tĂůĞƐ͘�
�ŽŶǀĞƌƐĞůǇ͕�ƉŽƉƵůĂƟŽŶ�ĮŐƵƌĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ůŽǁĞƐƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϭ͕ϴϯϳ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ůŝǀŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽǁŶƐ�ŽĨ�
/ǀĂŶŚŽĞ͕�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ͕�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ�ĂŶĚ�tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�
ůŽĐĂůŝƟĞƐ�ŽĨ��ĂƌŶŝĐŬ͕�DŽƐƐŐŝĞů͕�^ƵŶƐĞƚ�^ƚƌŝƉ�ĂŶĚ�dŝůƉĂ�
ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƌƌŽƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƉĂƐƚŽƌĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉĂů�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƉĂƐƚŽƌĂů͕�ŚŽƌƟĐƵůƚƵƌĂů͕�
ĂŐƌŝĐƵůƚƵƌĂů͕�ŵŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽƵƌŝƐŵ͘�ZƵƌĂů�ŐƌĂǌŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƟĞƐ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƌŐĞƐƚ�ůĂŶĚ�ƵƐĞ�
ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚŝƌĞ͕�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƟŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ϵϳ�ƉĞƌ�ĐĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶƟƌĞ�ĂƌĞĂ͘ 

�ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ŝƐ�ďŽƵŶĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚŝƌĞƐ�ŽĨ��ŽƵƌŬĞ͕��ŽďĂƌ͕ ��ĂƌƌĂƚŚŽŽů͕��ĂůƌĂŶĂůĚ�ĂŶĚ�
tĞŶƚǁŽƌƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�hŶŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞĚ��ƌĞĂ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝƚƐ�ĐůŽƐĞƐƚ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĐĞŶƚƌĞ�ƐŽŵĞ�
ϮϬϬŬŵ�ĂǁĂǇ�ŝŶ��ƌŽŬĞŶ�,ŝůů͘ 

OUR SHIRE 

OUR VISION 
�ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�Ă�ŐƌĞĂƚ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŽ�ůŝǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ǀŝƐŝƚ͘ 

OUR MISSON 
ZĞĂůŝƐŝŶŐ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ 

Þ �īĞĐƟǀĞ�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ 

Þ �ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞŵĞŶƚ͕�ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŽŶ͕�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ͕�ŽǁŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�
ĂŶĚ�ĐŽůůĂďŽƌĂƟǀĞ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ� 

Þ &ĂĐŝůŝƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 

Þ �ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ŽǁŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ 

Þ �ĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ͕�ĂīŽƌĚĂďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ 



�ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ǁĂƐ�ĐŽŶƐƟƚƵƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ϭϵϱϯ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽĐĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��Đƚ͘�
>ŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ϵϱϬŬŵ�ǁĞƐƚ�ŽĨ�^ǇĚŶĞǇ͕�ŝƚ�ĞŶĐŽŵƉĂƐƐĞƐ�Ă�ůĂŶĚ�ŵĂƐƐ�ŽĨ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϱϯ͕ϬϬϬ�ƐƋƵĂƌĞ�
ŬŝůŽŵĞƚƌĞƐ͘�dŚĞ��ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ĨŽƌ��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ŝƐ�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽĸĐĞƐ�
ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�/ǀĂŶŚŽĞ�ĂŶĚ�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ͘�tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ͕�ϵϴŬŵ�ŶŽƌƚŚ�ŽĨ�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ͕�ŝƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�
tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ�ŽĸĐĞ͘ 

^ŝŶĐĞ�ϮϬϭϰ͕��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƵŶĚĞƌ��ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�
�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ�ŝƐ�Dƌ�ZŽďĞƌƚ�;�ŽďͿ�^ƚĞǁĂƌƚ͘�Dƌ�^ƚĞǁĂƌƚ�ŝƐ�Ă�DŝŶŝƐƚĞƌŝĂů��ƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŽŽŬ�ƵƉ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽůĞ�ŝŶ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϵ͘ 

MANAGEMENT 

�ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�ĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ͗�'ŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ͕�ŚĞĂĚĞĚ�ďǇ�
ƚŚĞ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�DĂŶĂŐĞƌ͖�ĂŶĚ��ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�^ŚŝƌĞ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕�ŚĞĂĚĞĚ�ĞĂĐŚ�ďǇ�Ă��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌ͘ � 

DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ĂƐ�Ăƚ�ϯϬ�:ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϮϭ 

'ĞŶĞƌĂů�DĂŶĂŐĞƌ�–�'ƌĞŐ�,ŝůů 

�ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌ��ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�–�'ŽƌĚŽŶ�^ĞĞƚŽ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶĐĞĚ�ϳ�:ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϮϭ͘�:ĂĐŽď�WŚŝůƉ�ƵŶƟů�
&ĞďƌƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϮϭ͖��ĂƌŽůǇŶ�hƉƐƚŽŶ�;�ĐƟŶŐͿ�ĨƌŽŵ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϬϮϬ�ƚŽ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϮϭ͘ 

�ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌ�^ŚŝƌĞ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�–�ZĞĞĐĞ�tŝůƐŽŶ 

ORGANISATION 

�ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ďƵĚŐĞƚĞĚ�ƐƚĂī�ůŽĂĚ�ŽĨ�ϲϭ�ĨƵůů�ƟŵĞ�ĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶ�
ĂĐƚƵĂů�ƐƚĂī�ůŽĂĚ�ŽĨ�ϱϬ�ĨƵůů�ƟŵĞ�ĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚ͘�sĂĐĂŶƚ�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶƐ�Ɛŝƚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶ�Ăƚ�Ă�
ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐŬŝůů�ůĞǀĞůƐ͘��ƩƌĂĐƟŶŐ�ƐƚĂī�ƚŽ��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ĂůǁĂǇƐ�ďĞĞŶ�
ĐŚĂůůĞŶŐŝŶŐ͘�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŽŶ�ĂŶ�ƌĞĐƌƵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂƌŬĞƟŶŐ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ŝŶ�ĂŶ�
ĂƩĞŵƉƚ�ƚŽ�ĂƩƌĂĐƚ�ƐƵŝƚĂďůǇ�ƐŬŝůůĞĚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂŶƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶ͘ 

^ƚĂī�ĂƌĞ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ�ŚĂƐ�ƐĞĞŶ�
ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƌĞŵŽƚĞ�ǁŽƌŬĞƌ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ�ŝŶ�
'ŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�&ŝŶĂŶĐĞ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�ŽŶ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ĨĂĐĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĂĐƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�
ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ƌŽůĞƐ͘ 

OUR ORGANISATION 



DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ 
DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ŽĂƐŝƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�KƵƚďĂĐŬ͕�Ă�ďĞĂƵƟĨƵů�ƐƉŽƚ�ƚŽ�ƐŽĂŬ�ƵƉ�ƚŚĞ�
ŽƵƚďĂĐŬ�ĂƚŵŽƐƉŚĞƌĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞŶŝĞŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ŵŽĚĞƌŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�Ăƚ�
ǇŽƵƌ�ĮŶŐĞƌƟƉƐ͘��ƵďďĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ƚŽǁŶ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�ZŝǀĞƌ͕�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ�
ŚĂƐ�Ă�ƌŝĐŚ�/ŶĚŝŐĞŶŽƵƐ�ĂŶĚ��ƵƌŽƉĞĂŶ�ŚŝƐƚŽƌǇ͘� 
 
DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ�ŝƐ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ĐůŽƐĞ�ƚŽ�<ŝŶĐŚĞŐĂ�EĂƟŽŶĂů�WĂƌŬ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ǀŝƐŝƚŽƌƐ�
ĐĂŶ�ĞŶũŽǇ�ƐƉĞĐƚĂĐƵůĂƌ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ�>ĂŬĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�
ZŝǀĞƌ͕�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ĐůŽƐĞ�ĞŶĐŽƵŶƚĞƌƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŽĐĂů�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŽĐĂů�ǁŝůĚůŝĨĞ͘ 
 
DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ�ŝƐ�ĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŽůĚ�ĞǆƉůŽƌĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƵƚďĂĐŬ͕��ƵƌŬĞ�ĂŶĚ�tŝůůƐ͕�DŝƚĐŚĞůů�ĂŶĚ�^ƚƵƌƚ͕�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƐƚŽƌĂů�ƚƌĂĚŝƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ǁŽŽů�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ůĂďŽƵƌŝŶŐ�ƉĂĚĚůĞ�ƐƚĞĂŵĞƌƐ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ďĂůĞƐ�ƚŽ�
ŵĂƌŬĞƚ͘�DĂŶǇ�ƚƌĂǀĞůůĞƌƐ�ƚŽĚĂǇ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵƌƉƌŝƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĮŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�>ĂŬĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�DĂũŽƌ�DŝƚĐŚĞůů�ŽƌŝŐŝŶĂůůǇ�ŶĂŵĞĚ�
͞>ĂŝĚůĞǇ͛Ɛ�WŽŶĚƐ͘͟ 

tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ 
tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ƌŝĐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ǀŝďƌĂŶƚ�ŚŝƐƚŽƌǇ͘�KŶĐĞ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�͞YƵĞĞŶ��ŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�tĞƐƚ͕͟�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŚŝƌĚ�ůĂƌŐĞƐƚ�ƐŚŝƉƉŝŶŐ�ƉŽƌƚ�ŝŶ��ƵƐƚƌĂůŝĂ͘�/Ŷ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽŽŵ�
ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ϭϴϴϬƐ͕�ƐĂŶĚƐƚŽŶĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƋƵĂƌƌŝĞĚ�ůŽĐĂůůǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞĂƵƟĨƵů�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐƚĂŶĚ�ƚŽĚĂǇ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƌĞŵŝŶĚĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŚĞĂĚǇ�ĚĂǇƐ͘ 
 
��ƐŚŽƌƚ�ĚƌŝǀĞ�Žƌ�ǁĂůŬ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�ƚŽǁŶ�ǁŝůů�ƌĞǀĞĂů�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĞĂƚ�ƐĂŶĚƐƚŽŶĞ�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ͕�ŚŝƐƚŽƌŝĐ�ĐĞŶƚƌĞ�>ŽŌ��ƌŝĚŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŽůĚ�ǁŚĂƌĨ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŚĂŶĚůĞĚ�Ăůů�ƚŚĂƚ�
ĐĂƌŐŽ�ƐŽ�ŵĂŶǇ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ĂŐŽ͘�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ůĂƌŐĞ��ďŽƌŝŐŝŶĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ͕�
ďĞŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ŚŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌŬĂŶĚũŝ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�;�ĂƌŬĂ�ŵĞĂŶŝŶŐ�ƌŝǀĞƌͿ͘ 

tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ 
tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ�ŝƐ�ƵŶŝƋƵĞ͘�WƌĞĐŝŽƵƐ�ƐĞĂŵ�ŽƉĂů�ǁĂƐ�ĚŝƐĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�
tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ϭϴϵϬƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉĂů�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĮĞůĚ�ǁĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ƚŽ�
ďĞ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌƐĞĂƐ�;ŐŝǀŝŶŐ�tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƐƟŶĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�
ďĞŝŶŐ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ĂƐ��ƵƐƚƌĂůŝĂ͛Ɛ�&ŝƌƐƚ��ŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů�KƉĂů�&ŝĞůĚͿ͘ 
 
dŽ�ĞƐĐĂƉĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚ�ƐƵŵŵĞƌ�ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĞƐ͕�ĞĂƌůǇ�ŵŝŶĞƌƐ�ƐŽŽŶ�
ďĞŐĂŶ�ƚŽ�ůŝǀĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ŵŝŶĞƐ�ĞŶũŽǇŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚĂŶƚ�
ƵŶĚĞƌŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŝĚ-ƚǁĞŶƟĞƐ�Ăůů�ǇĞĂƌ�ƌŽƵŶĚ͘�
dŚĞƐĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ĂƐ�͞ĚƵŐŽƵƚƐ͟�ĂŶĚ�ďĞĐĂŵĞ�ŚŽŵĞ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĂŶǇ�
ŵŝŶĞƌƐ͘ 
 
dŽĚĂǇ͕�ŵŽĚĞƌŶ�ĚƵŐŽƵƚ�ŚŽŵĞƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ƵŶŝƋƵĞ�ŚŽƵƐŝŶŐ�ƐƚǇůĞ�
ĨŽƌ�ŵĂŶǇ�tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăůů�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞŶŝĞŶĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĂŶǇ�
ŵŽĚĞƌŶ�ŚŽŵĞ�ďƵƚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂůůǇ�ĨƌŝĞŶĚůǇ͕�ůŝƩůĞ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�
Žƌ�ĐŽŽůŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͘ 

OUR TOWNS 



/ǀĂŶŚŽĞ 
/ǀĂŶŚŽĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ƚŽǁŶ�ƐŝƚƵĂƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ��Žďď�,ŝŐŚǁĂǇ�ϭϴϬ�ŬŝůŽŵĞƚƌĞƐ�ƐŽƵƚŚ�
ĞĂƐƚ�ŽĨ�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ͘�dŚĞ�ƚŽǁŶƐŚŝƉ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ǀŝƐŝƚŽƌƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƉůĞĂƐĂŶƚ�
ďƌĞĂŬ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ũŽƵƌŶĞǇ�ŝŶ�ĂŶ�ŽƵƚďĂĐŬ�ƉĂƐƚŽƌĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ͘ 
 
&ƌŝĞŶĚůǇ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͕�ĐůĞĂŶ�ĂŵĞŶŝƟĞƐ͕�ůĂŶĚƐĐĂƉĞĚ�ƌĞĐƌĞĂƟŽŶĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�
ƐĞůĨ-ŐƵŝĚĞĚ�,ĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ�dƌĂŝů͕�ĞŶĂďůĞ�ǀŝƐŝƚŽƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶũŽǇ�Ă�ƐŚŽƌƚ�ďƌĞĂŬ�ĂŶĚ�
ŐĂŝŶ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƐŝŐŚƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽǁŶ͛Ɛ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƟŶŐ�ƉĂƐƚ͘ 
 
ZĞƚƌĂĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉůŽŝƚƐ�ŽĨ�ďƵƐŚƌĂŶŐĞƌƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ũŽƵƌŶĞǇƐ�ŽĨ��Žďď�Θ��Ž�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚĞ�ĂĚǀĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂŝůǁĂǇƐ�ĂƐ�ǇŽƵ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�/ǀĂŶŚŽĞ�,ĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ�dƌĂŝů͘�
dŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŽƵŐŚ�ƟŵĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐŽŽĚ͕�ŇŽŽĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐƌŝƉƉůŝŶŐ�ĚƌŽƵŐŚƚ͕�ƚŽǁŶƐ�
ůŝŬĞ�/ǀĂŶŚŽĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĞĂƌŶĞĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ŝŶ��ƵƐƚƌĂůŝĂŶ�ŚŝƐƚŽƌǇ͘ 

dŝůƉĂ 
dŚĞ�ŽƌŝŐŝŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂŵĞ�͞dŝůƉĂ͟�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌŬŝŶĚũŝ�ǁŽƌĚ�͞ƚŚƵůƉĂ͕͟�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�
͞ŇŽŽĚǁĂƚĞƌƐ͕͟�ĨŽƌ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝĐŝŶŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�dŝůƉĂ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�ZŝǀĞƌ�ŇŽŽĚƐ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�ϳϬ�ŬŝůŽŵĞƚƌĞƐ�ǁŝĚĞ�ŝŶ�
ŵĂũŽƌ�ŇŽŽĚƐ͘ 
 
dŚĞ�ǀŝůůĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�dŝůƉĂ�ĐĂŵĞ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĞǆŝƐƚĞŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ϭϴϳϲ�ǁŚĞŶ��ƌƚŚƵƌ��ŽƩŽŶ�ŽƉĞŶĞĚ�Ă�ƐƚŽƌĞ͘�:ĂŵĞƐ��ƵĐŬůĞǇ�
ďƵŝůƚ�ƚŚĞ�tĞĞtĂƩĂŚ�,ŽƚĞů�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�dŝůƉĂ�dƌĂĚŝŶŐ�WŽƐƚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽǁ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ǇĞĂƌ  ͘
 
�Ǉ�ϭϴϵϰ͕��ŽƩŽŶ͛Ɛ�ƐƚŽƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ŽǁŶĞĚ�ďǇ��ĂǀŝĚ�:ŽŶĞƐ�Θ��Ž͘�ǁŚŽ�ƐŽůĚ�ŝƚ�ƚŽ��ĚŵŽŶĚ�WĞƌƌŽƩ�ǁŚŽ�ƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ŝƚ�
ŝŶƚŽ�Ă�ŚŽƚĞů�ŶĂŵĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ZŽǇĂů͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�dŝůƉĂ�,ŽƚĞů͘�/Ŷ�ϭϴϴϬ�Ă�WŽƐƚĂů�ZĞĐĞŝǀŝŶŐ�KĸĐĞ�ǁĂƐ�
ŽƉĞŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚŽƌĞ͘�dŝůƉĂ�ŚĂĚ�Ă�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĨƌŽŵ�ϭϴϵϲ�Ɵůů�ŝƚƐ�ĐůŽƐƵƌĞ�ŝŶ�ϭϵϰϱ  ͘
 
��ƉƵŶƚ�ƐĞƌǀĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ŽĨ�ĐƌŽƐƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�ZŝǀĞƌ�Ăƚ�dŝůƉĂ�ƵŶƟů�ƚŚĞ�ďƌŝĚŐĞ�ǁĂƐ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�
ŝŶ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϭϵϲϯ� 

^ƵŶƐĞƚ�^ƚƌŝƉ 
^ƵŶƐĞƚ�^ƚƌŝƉ�ǁĂƐ�ŐĂǌĞƩĞĚ�ŝŶ�ϭϵϲϱ�ĂƐ�Ă�ǀŝůůĂŐĞ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ͕�ϮϬŬŵƐ�ŶŽƌƚŚ�ŽĨ�
DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ͕�ƐŝƚƵĂƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�ƐŚŽƌĞ�ŽĨ�>ĂŬĞ�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ͘� 
 
��ƵŶŝƋƵĞ�ŽƵƚďĂĐŬ�ƚĂŬĞ�ŽŶ�Ă�ŚŽůŝĚĂǇ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĂ͕�^ƵŶƐĞƚ�^ƚƌŝƉ�ŝƐ�Ă�ŚŽŵĞ-ĂǁĂǇ-ĨƌŽŵ-ŚŽŵĞ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĂŶǇ�
�ƌŽŬĞŶ�,ŝůů�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ŶĞĞĚŝŶŐ�Ă�ǁĞĞŬĞŶĚ�ĞƐĐĂƉĞ͘ 
 
^ƵŶƐĞƚ�^ƚƌŝƉ�ĐĂŶ�ďŽĂƐƚ�ŚĂǀŝŶŐ�ŝƚƐ�ŽǁŶ�WŽƐƚ�KĸĐĞ�ĂŶĚ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�,Ăůů�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŽĂƟŶŐ͕�ĮƐŚŝŶŐ͕�ŐŽůĨ�ĂŶĚ�
ƚĞŶŶŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͘�dŚĞ�^ƵŶƐĞƚ�^ƚƌŝƉ�WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ĂĐƟǀĞ�
ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶ�ĨŽĐƵƐƐŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽǁŶ͘�dŚĞ�WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�
ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�Ă�ŵĂũŽƌ�ƚŽƵƌŝƐŵ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ͕�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĂƌƚƐ͕�ĐƵůƚƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�Įůŵ�ƚŽ�
ŽƵƚďĂĐŬ�E^t�͘ 

OUR TOWNS 



dŚĞ�ĐŚĂůůĞŶŐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞĐĞĚŝŶŐ�ϭϮ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�
ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ŽŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϮϬͬϮϭ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĂƐ�ǁĞ�ǁĂƚĐŚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�
ŵĂĚĞ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĂƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ŽƵƌ�
ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĚŝƐƌƵƉƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ŽƵƌ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�
ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ��Ks/�͘ 

�Ɛ�/�ǁƌŝƚĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌƵŐŐůĞƐ�ǁĞ�ĨĂĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ��Ks/��
ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ĚŝůŝŐĞŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ďǇ�
ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚĂī�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽĐĂů�
�ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ͘�tŚŝůĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�
ŽŶ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ƵŐƵƐƚͬ^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϮϭ�
�Ks/��ŽƵƚďƌĞĂŬ�ǁŝůů�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ƵŶƟů�ůĂƚĞƌ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ�
�ŶŶƵĂů�ZĞƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĚŝĐĂƟŽŶ͕�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�
ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞĨƵůŶĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƌ��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ƐƚĂī�ĂŶĚ�
ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŝĚĞƌ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ŶŽƚĞĚ�ŚĞƌĞ͘� 

>ŽŽŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ͕��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĐŽŵŵĞŶĐĞĚ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�WůĂŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�
ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉƐ�ŚĞůĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŽǁŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǀŝůůĂŐĞƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͘�EĞĂƌůǇ�ϯϬϬ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĂƩĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�
ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉƐ�–�Ă�ĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂďůĞ�ĞīŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƵĐŚ�Ă�ƐŵĂůů�ĂƌĞĂ͘ 

KƵƌ�ƉůĂŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�KĸĐĞ�ŽĨ�>ŽĐĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�/ŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞĚ�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�
&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŽǁŶĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ͘�dŚĞǇ�
ƐĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƌĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽƵƌ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ǁŝƐŚ�ƚŽ�ŚĞĂĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ĂƐƐŝƐƚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝƚƐ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�ĂŶĚ�
ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ͘�dŚĞ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�WůĂŶ�ǁŝůů�ƵŶĚĞƌƉŝŶ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ƉůĂŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�ƚŽǁŶ�ĂŶĚ�
ǀŝůůĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶ��ĚǀŽĐĂĐǇ�WůĂŶ�ĂŶĚ�Ă��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�/ŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ��ĐƟŽŶ�WůĂŶ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�
WůĂŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�Ăůů�ŝŶ�ŽƵƌ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĞƋƵĂů�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ͘ 

�ĞƐƉŝƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚĂůůĞŶŐĞƐ�ǁĞ�ĨĂĐĞĚ͕�ǁĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŵŽǀĞĚ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĂůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ-WŽŽŶĐĂƌŝĞ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŶĞǁ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�
tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ͕�/ǀĂŶŚŽĞ�ĂŶĚ�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ͘��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ŵƵůƟƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ŝŶ�
/ǀĂŶŚŽĞ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ďƌŝŶŐ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ǀĂƌŝĞƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƐƚĂƚĞ�ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ͕�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�Ă�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŽƵƚŚĞƌŶ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŚŝƌĞ͘ 

tĞ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƵƌ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ�tĞŝƌ͕�ƚŚĞ��ĂĂŬĂ��ƵůƚƵƌĂů�
�ĞŶƚƌĞ͕�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ƚĞůĞĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�DĂĂƌŝ�DĂĂ�,ĞĂůƚŚ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�Ăƚ�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�
DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ�&ŝƐŚ�,ĂƚĐŚĞƌǇ͘�^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ŝŶƐƚƌƵŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ŵŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞƐĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŬĞǇ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ͕�
ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŐŽ�ĂŚĞĂĚ͘ 

 

FROM THE ADMINISTRATOR 



�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĂŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ŝƚƐ�>ŽĐĂů��ŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�;>�WͿ�ƚŽ�ƵƉĚĂƚĞ�ŝƚƐ�ŚĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ͕�ĂŵĞŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂŶĚ�ƵƐĞ�ƚĂďůĞƐ͕�
ĂŶĚ�ƌĞǌŽŶĞ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�ůĂŶĚ͘�tĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽĐĂů�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�
ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ǀŝƚĂů�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ  ͘

tĞ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�KĸĐĞ�ŽĨ�>ŽĐĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ŵŽĚĞů�
ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŚŝƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂĚǀŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�KĸĐĞ�ƚŽ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ŽŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĮŶĂůŝƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͘��tĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�Ă�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�
DŝŶŝƐƚĞƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ŽĐĐƵƌ  ͘

tĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĚǀŽĐĂƚĞ�ƚŽ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�tĂƚĞƌ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�
ZĞĨŽƌŵ͕�ZŽĂĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶƐ͕�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ�dĞůĞĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ͕�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�&Ăƌ�tĞƐƚ͕�ĂŶĚ�
ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�&Ăƌ�tĞƐƚ�:ŽŝŶƚ�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ŽƵŶĐŝůƐ  ͘

/ƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�Ă�ĐŚĂůůĞŶŐŝŶŐ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚŝƌĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĐŚĂůůĞŶŐĞƐ�ĂŚĞĂĚ͘��Ƶƚ�/�ŬŶŽǁ�ƚŚĂƚ͕�ďǇ�
ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ͕�ǁĞ�ĐĂŶ�ĨŽƌŐĞ�Ă�ďƌŝŐŚƚ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ  ͘

/�ĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ��ŶŶƵĂů�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ƚŽ�ǇŽƵ  ͘

FROM THE ADMINISTRATOR 
CONTINUED 

�Žď�^ƚĞǁĂƌƚ 
�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ 
�ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů� 

^ĞĂůŝŶŐ�WŽŽŶĐĂƌŝĞ�ZŽĂĚ͕�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�
DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�tĞŶƚǁŽƌƚŚ�
^ŚŝƌĞ�ďŽƵŶĚĂƌǇ͕�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�
ƐƚĞƉ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ŽƉĞŶŝŶŐ�ƵƉ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�
�ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ƚŽ�ŶĞǁ�ƚŽƵƌŝƐŵ�ĂŶĚ�
ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�
ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ͘ 



�ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ŚĂĚ�Ă�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟǀĞ�
ǇĞĂƌ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ǁŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ͕�ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�
ƐŽĐŝĂů�ƉůĂŶƐ�ŶĞĂƌŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƟŽŶ͘�dŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ͛Ɛ��ŶŶƵĂů�
ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ĂŝŵƐ�ƚŽ�ŚŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ǁŽƌŬ�
ďĞŝŶŐ�ĚŽŶĞ�ďǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�ĮŶĂŶĐĞ͕�
ŐŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ͘ 
 
�Ɛ�Ă�ƌĞŵŽƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐŽůĂƚĞĚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͕�ƐŽŵĞ�ϭϬϬϬŬŵ�ĨƌŽŵ�
^ǇĚŶĞǇ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĂƩƌĂĐƚ�ƋƵĂůŝĮĞĚ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�ƐƚĂī�
ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�Ă�ĐŚĂůůĞŶŐĞ͘�'ĞŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ŝƐŽůĂƟŽŶ͕�
ĐŽƵƉůĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ�ŚŽƵƐŝŶŐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŚĂƐ�ůĞĚ�ƚŽ�
�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƵƟůŝƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽĚĞƌŶ�ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŝƚ�
ĂŶĚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŝŶŐ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�ƐƚĂī�ĂƐ�ƌĞŵŽƚĞ�ǁŽƌŬĞƌƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�
ŚĂƐ�ƉƌŽǀĞĚ�Ă�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐĨƵů�ǁĂǇ�ŽĨ�ĚŽŝŶŐ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�
ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ĞƐƐĞŶƟĂů�ƐŬŝůůƐ�ďĞĐŽŵŝŶŐ�Ă�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ�
ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͛Ɛ�ǁŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ͘ 
 
 
KǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƐƚ�ϭϮ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ͕��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ǁŽƌŬĞĚ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ĐŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƟŶŐ�ŝƚƐ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐŽƵŶĚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ͘��ĸĐŝĞŶĐŝĞƐ�ŝŶ�ďŽƚŚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ŐŝǀĞŶ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�Ă�ďĞƩĞƌ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ŝƚƐ�ƐŚŽƌƚ�ƚĞƌŵ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽŶŐ�ƚĞƌŵ�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶ͘�KƵƌ�ƌĞůŝĂŶĐĞ�ŽŶ�
ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ŐƌĂŶƚƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ͕�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƚƌĞŵĞůǇ�ůŽǁ�ƌĂƚĞ�ďĂƐĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͕�ďƵƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�
ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƌ�ŶĞǁ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ͕��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ŝŶƐŝŐŚƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ŽƵƌ�ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�
ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ďĞƐƚ�ĞǆƉĞŶĚĞĚ͘ 
 
KƵƌ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�Ă�ŵĂũŽƌ�ŽǀĞƌŚĂƵů͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�
ĂŶ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŽŶŝĐ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͕�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞ�ƚƌĂĐŬŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ͕�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�
ŵƵĐŚ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ƉůĂĐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĂƟŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƌ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ŽƵƌ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ŽďůŝŐĂƟŽŶƐ͘ 
 
�ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŝƐ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�&Ăƌ�tĞƐƚ�;^ŽƵƚŚͿ�:ŽŝŶƚ�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶ�;:KͿ͕�Ă�ďŽĚǇ�
ĨŽƌŵĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�E^t�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�>ŽĐĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ZĞĨŽƌŵ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ͘�dŚŝƐ�ĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ�ŚĂƐ�
ďĞĐŽŵĞ�Ă�ǀĂůƵĂďůĞ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ƚŽ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͕�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶĂů�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵŝŶŐ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƵƌ�ŶĞŝŐŚďŽƵƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ŽŶ�ĂŶ�ĂĚ�ŚŽĐ�ďĂƐŝƐ͘�tŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
:K�ĐĂŵĞ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂů�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ǁŽƵůĚŶ͛ƚ�ŽƌĚŝŶĂƌŝůǇ�ďĞ�ŝŶ�Ă�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĮŶĂŶĐĞ͕�
ĨŽĐƵƐƐŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƚŽƵƌŝƐŵ͕�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ͘ 
 
dŚĞ��ƵĚŝƚ͕�ZŝƐŬ�ĂŶĚ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ�;�Z/�Ϳ�ŚĂƐ�ŵĞƚ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌůǇ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŚĂƐ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞĚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŝƐ�
ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ŝƚƐ�ŽďůŝŐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ďŽƚŚ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ͘�dŚĞ��Z/��
ĐŽŵƉƌŝƐĞƐ�ĨŽƵƌ�ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĂĚǀŝƐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�
ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ�ŚĂƐ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞĚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŝƐ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ŝƚƐ�ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵĂƟĐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝƐĐŝƉůŝŶĞĚ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ƚŽ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ͘ 

FROM THE GENERAL MANAGER 



KǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƐƚ�ϭϮ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ͕��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŝŶŝƟĂƚĞĚ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ŶĞǁ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�
WůĂŶ͕�ŝŶ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝƚƐ�/ŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞĚ�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�;/WΘZͿ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ŽďůŝŐĂƟŽŶƐ͘���ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ�
ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƌƵƌĂů�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŵŽƚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚĞĚ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉƐ�ŝŶ�Ăůů�ŽƵƌ�
ƚŽǁŶƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŽŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�/WΘZ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�WůĂŶ�
–�Ă�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ϭϬ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ĨŽƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ͕�Ă�ĨŽƵƌ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ƉůĂŶ͕�ŽƌĚŝŶĂƌŝůǇ�ƟŵĞƚĂďůĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŝŶĐŝĚĞ�ǁŝƚŚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĞůĞĐƟŽŶƐ͕�Ă�ŽŶĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�
ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ƉůĂŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŐŝǀĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŝƚƐ�ƐŚŽƌƚ�ƚĞƌŵ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�
ĂŶĚ�Ă��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�/ŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ��ĐƟŽŶ�WůĂŶ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞƐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘� 
 
�ĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƵŶŝƋƵĞ�ĚŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƌ�^ŚŝƌĞ͕��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ĐŚŽƐĞŶ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƉŝŶ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�
dŽǁŶ�ĂŶĚ�sŝůůĂŐĞ�WůĂŶƐ�–�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƵŶŝƋƵĞ�ƚŽ�ĞĂĐŚ�ƚŽǁŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǀŝůůĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŐŝǀĞ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƌĞĐƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŐƌŽǁƚŚ͘�tŚŝůĞ�ƚŚĞ�/WΘZ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�
ĚĞůĂǇĞĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƟŽŶƐ͕��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŝƐ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ�
ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�ďǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĂƐ�ƐŽŽŶ�ĂƐ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ͘ 
 
�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ŝƚƐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ�ŽĨ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ǁŽƌŬƐ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƌŽĂĚ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ZŽĂĚ�
DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů��ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ZŽĂĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�DĂƌŝƟŵĞ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ͕�ĐŽŵŵĞŶĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ƚŽ�
ƐĞĂů�WŽŽŶĐĂƌŝĞ�ZŽĂĚ͕�ƵƉŐƌĂĚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽƵƌŝƐƚ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�&Ăƌ�tĞƐƚ�;^ŽƵƚŚͿ�
:ŽŝŶƚ�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĞƐƐĞŶƟĂů�ƵƉŐƌĂĚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŽƵƌ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ͕�tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ�ĂŶĚ�
/ǀĂŶŚŽĞ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ƵƉŐƌĂĚĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƐĞĐƵƌĞ�ƉŽƚĂďůĞ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ƚŽ�ŽƵƌ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ͘ 
 
�ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ŝƐ�ůŽŽŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�Ă�ďƌŝŐŚƚ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ͘�KƵƌ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�ƐŬŝůůƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƐƚ�
ϭϮ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ͕�ǁĞ�ůŽŽŬ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ǁĞůů͘ 

FROM THE GENERAL MANAGER 
CONTINUED 

'ƌĞŐ�,ŝůů 
'ĞŶĞƌĂů�DĂŶĂŐĞƌ 
�ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů� 



STATUTORY REPORTING 
^ĞĐƟŽŶ�Ϯϭϳ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽĐĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�;'ĞŶĞƌĂůͿ�ZĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ϮϬϬϱ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘��ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͕��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƌĞŵĂŝŶĞĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ��ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ͘��ůů�
ƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ƚŽ�DĂǇŽƌ�ĂŶĚͬŽƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�ĂƐ��ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ͘ 

�;ϭͿ��&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ϰϮϴ;ϰͿ;ďͿ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��Đƚ͕�ĂŶ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�
ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ— 

;ĂͿ��ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞͿ�ŽĨ�ŽǀĞƌƐĞĂƐ�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ďǇ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ͕�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�
ƐƚĂī�Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶƐ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ�ƐƉŽŶƐŽƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐͿ�dŚĞƌĞ�
ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�ŽǀĞƌƐĞĂƐ�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 

;ĂϭͿ�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĐŽƐƚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ŽĨ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�ƚŽ͕�
ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĐŝǀŝĐ�ĨƵŶĐƟŽŶƐ�;ĂƐ�ƉĂŝĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů͕�ƌĞŝŵďƵƌƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌ�Žƌ�ƌĞĐŽŶĐŝůĞĚ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌͿ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ— 

;ŝͿ��ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ŽĨ�ĚĞĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ŽĸĐĞ�ĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƉĞƌƐŽŶĂů�
ďĂƐŝƐ͕�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ůĂƉƚŽƉ�ĐŽŵƉƵƚĞƌƐ͕�ŵŽďŝůĞ�ƚĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůĂŶĚůŝŶĞ�ƚĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĂĐƐŝŵŝůĞ�ŵĂĐŚŝŶĞƐ�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĞĚ�
ŝŶ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ͛�ŚŽŵĞƐ�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ůŝŶĞ�ƌĞŶƚĂů�ĐŽƐƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĞƚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ĐŽƐƚƐ�ďƵƚ�ŶŽƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĐĂůů�
ĐŽƐƚƐͿ���ŽŵƉƵƚĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚ�ĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ƚŽƚĂůůĞĚ�ΨϮ͕ϰϳϳ͘ϭϬ͘ 

;ŝŝͿ��ƚĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞ�ĐĂůůƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ďǇ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĐĂůůƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŵŽďŝůĞ�ƚĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ĂŶĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ůĂŶĚůŝŶĞ�ƚĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĂĐƐŝŵŝůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ͛�ŚŽŵĞƐ͘�WŚŽŶĞ�ĐĂůůƐ�ĂƌĞ�
ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽďŝůĞ�ƉŚŽŶĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŽƚĂůƐ�ΨϰϲϬ͘ϴϬ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ǇĞĂƌ 

;ŝŝŝͿ��ƚŚĞ�ĂƩĞŶĚĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ�Ăƚ�ĐŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞŵŝŶĂƌƐ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƐĞŵŝŶĂƌƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͘ 

;ŝŝŝĂͿ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŝŶĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ͕�ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�ŝŶĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĂǇŽƌƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĂǇŽƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�ŝŶĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�
ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�ŝŶĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 

;ŝǀͿ��ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ŵĂǇŽƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐŬŝůů�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĂǇŽƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ƐŬŝůů�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͘ 

;ǀͿ��ŝŶƚĞƌƐƚĂƚĞ�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ďǇ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŽƵƚ-ŽĨ-ƉŽĐŬĞƚ�ƚƌĂǀĞůůŝŶŐ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�
ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶƚĞƌƐƚĂƚĞ�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͘ 

;ǀŝͿ��ŽǀĞƌƐĞĂƐ�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ďǇ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŽƵƚ-ŽĨ-ƉŽĐŬĞƚ�ƚƌĂǀĞůůŝŶŐ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�
ŽǀĞƌƐĞĂƐ�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 

;ǀŝŝͿ��ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĂŶǇ�ƐƉŽƵƐĞ͕�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌ�;ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉƉŽƐŝƚĞ�ƐĞǆͿ�Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶ�
ǁŚŽ�ĂĐĐŽŵƉĂŶŝĞĚ�Ă�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ŚŝƐ�Žƌ�ŚĞƌ�ĐŝǀŝĐ�ĨƵŶĐƟŽŶƐ͕�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ƉĂǇĂďůĞ�ŝŶ�
ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�'ƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�DĂǇŽƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�
�ŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�>ŽĐĂů��ŽƵŶĐŝůƐ�ŝŶ�E^t�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌ-'ĞŶĞƌĂů�ĨƌŽŵ�ƟŵĞ�ƚŽ�ƟŵĞ͘�dŚĞƌĞ��ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�
ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƉŽƵƐĞ�Žƌ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌ͘ 

;ǀŝŝŝͿ��ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ĐŚŝůĚ�ŽĨ͕�Žƌ�ĂŶ�ŝŵŵĞĚŝĂƚĞ�ĨĂŵŝůǇ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ͕�Ă�
ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌ͕�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞ�ŚŝƐ�Žƌ�ŚĞƌ�ĐŝǀŝĐ�ĨƵŶĐƟŽŶƐ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ŶŽ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 

�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�ĨĞĞƐ��Ψϭϯϯ͕Ϭϱϴ͘ϭϮ� 



;ĂϮͿ�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽĨ�ĞĂĐŚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�ĂǁĂƌĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�;ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŽĨ�ƚĞŶĚĞƌ�Žƌ�
ŽƚŚĞƌǁŝƐĞͿ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ— 

;ŝͿ��ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�;ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ͕�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ďƵƚ�ŶŽƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐͿ͕�ĂŶĚ 

;ŝŝͿ��ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ΨϭϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ�Žƌ�ƐƵĐŚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ĂƐ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ƉƌĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ͕ 

ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂƚƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŐŽŽĚƐ�Žƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƐƵƉƉůŝĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�
ƚŽƚĂů�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ƉĂǇĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ͕ 

 
 

;ĂϯͿ�Ă�ƐƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ŝŶĐƵƌƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ůĞŐĂů�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚŝŶŐƐ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�
ďǇ�Žƌ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ͕�ĐŽƐƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ƉĂŝĚ�Žƌ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ďǇ�ǁĂǇ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ĐŽƵƌƚ�
ƐĞƩůĞŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĚŝƐĐůŽƐĞĚͿ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƐƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�
ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ĞĂĐŚ�ůĞŐĂů�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�;ŝĨ�ŝƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĮŶĂůŝƐĞĚͿ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƵůƚ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�ůĞŐĂů�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚŝŶŐƐ�
ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ 

;ĂϰͿ�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�Žƌ�Ă�ƐƵŵŵĂƌǇ�;ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ϲϳ;ϯͿ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ĐƚͿ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�
ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ϲϳ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��Đƚ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶŝŶŐ�ǁŽƌŬ�ĐĂƌƌŝĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ŽŶ�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ůĂŶĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�Žƌ�Ă�ƐƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƐƵĐŚ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĨƵůůǇ�Žƌ�ƉĂƌƚůǇ�ƐƵďƐŝĚŝƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů͕�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�
ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ďǇ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ƐƵďƐŝĚŝƐĞĚ�ĂŶǇ�ƐƵĐŚ�ǁŽƌŬ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǇĞĂƌ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ŶŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ĐĂƌƌŝĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ŽŶ�
ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ůĂŶĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 

;ĂϱͿ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚ�Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌǁŝƐĞ�ŐƌĂŶƚĞĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϯϱϲ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��Đƚ͘���ƚŽƚĂů�ŽĨ�ΨϭϬ͕ϴϲϴ͘ϴϴ�
ǁĂƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϯϱϲ 

;ĂϲͿ�Ă�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ďŽĚŝĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞǆĞƌĐŝƐĞĚ�ĨƵŶĐƟŽŶƐ�ĚĞůĞŐĂƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů͘�
�ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͕��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ�ŝƚƐ�^ϯϱϱ�KƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�WƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ͕�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�
ǀŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ďŽĚŝĞƐ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂĚ�ĞǆĞƌĐŝƐĞĚ�ĨƵŶĐƟŽŶƐ�ĚĞůĞŐĂƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͘��ǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ďŽĚŝĞƐ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�
ĞǆĞƌĐŝƐĞĚ�ĚĞůĞŐĂƚĞĚ�ĨƵŶĐƟŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ͗ 

�ĂƌŶŝĐŬ�,Ăůů��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ 
tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ 
tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ�,Ăůů��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ 
DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ��ŽŵŵŽŶƐ��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ 

�ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌ �ĞƐĐƌ �ŵŽƵŶƚ�;'^d��ǆĐͿ 

tĂƌĚůĞ��ƵŝůĚĞƌƐ ^ƵƉƉůǇ�ĂŶĚ�/ŶƐƚĂůů�ϯ�ŶĞǁ� 
ĚĞƉŽƚ�ƐŚĞĚƐ 

ΨϮϬϴ͕ϮϯϬ 

hŶŝWůĂŶ�WƚǇ�>ƚĚ ^ƵƉƉůǇ�ĂŶĚ�/ŶƐƚĂůů�ϯ�ŶĞǁ�
dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚĂďůĞ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ 

ΨϰϬϴ͕ϱϳϯ 

sŝŶŝĚĞǆ�WƚǇ�>ƚĚ ^ƵƉƉůǇ�ĂŶĚ��ĞůŝǀĞƌ�ϭϳŬŵ�ŽĨ�
WŽůǇ�ƉŝƉĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĮƫŶŐƐ 

ΨϮϮϭ͕ϰϮϯ 

/ƐƵǌƵ��ƵƐƚƌĂůŝĂ�;dƌĂĐƐĞƌǀ�
�ƵďďŽͿ 

^ƵƉƉůǇ�ĂŶĚ��ĞůŝǀĞƌ�ϭ�ŶĞǁ�
�ƌĂŶĞ�dƌƵĐŬ 

Ψϭϲϲ͕ϵϭϵ 

<ĞůůŽŐŐ��ƌŽǁŶ�ZŽŽƚ�WƚǇ�>ƚĚ WŽŽŶĐĂƌŝĞ�ZĚ��ĞƐŝŐŶ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ ΨϮϮϱ͕ϱϬϬ 

tĂƌĚůĞ��ƵŝůĚĞƌƐ EĞǁ��ƵŝůĚ�–�/ǀĂŶŚŽĞ�D^K�
�ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ 

Ψϱϰϳ͕ϴϬϬ 

STATUTORY REPORTING 



;ĂϳͿ�Ă�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŽŶƐ͕�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉƐ͕�ƚƌƵƐƚƐ͕�ũŽŝŶƚ�ǀĞŶƚƵƌĞƐ͕�ƐǇŶĚŝĐĂƚĞƐ�Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ďŽĚŝĞƐ�;ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�Žƌ�
ŶŽƚ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞĚͿ�ŝŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�;ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�ĂůŽŶĞ�Žƌ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶũƵŶĐƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůƐͿ�ŚĞůĚ�Ă�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůůŝŶŐ�
ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǇĞĂƌ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ŶŽ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůůŝŶŐ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ŚĞůĚ�ŝŶ�ĂŶǇ�ďŽĚǇ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 

;ĂϴͿ�Ă�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŽŶƐ͕�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉƐ͕�ƚƌƵƐƚƐ͕�ũŽŝŶƚ�ǀĞŶƚƵƌĞƐ͕�ƐǇŶĚŝĐĂƚĞƐ�Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ďŽĚŝĞƐ�;ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�Žƌ�
ŶŽƚ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞĚͿ�ŝŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǇĞĂƌ͘��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚŽůĚƐ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�&Ăƌ�tĞƐƚ�;^ŽƵƚŚͿ�:ŽŝŶƚ�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ��ƵƐƚƌĂůŝĂ�&Ăƌ�tĞƐƚ͘�KƚŚĞƌ�
ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ǁĞƌĞ͗ 

ZǇĚĞ��ŝƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů 
EĞƚtĂƐƚĞ 
tĞƐƚĞƌŶ��ŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ��ŽƵŶĐŝůƐ�ŽĨ�E^t 
ZŽĂĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�DĂƌŝƟŵĞ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 
dƌĂŝŶ>ŝŶŬ 
�ƵƐƚƌĂůŝĂ�WŽƐƚ 
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�E^t 
KƌĂŶĂ�tĂƚĞƌ�hƟůŝƟĞƐ��ůůŝĂŶĐĞ 
,ŽŵĞ��ĂƌĞ 
DĂĂƌŝ�DĂ�,ĞĂůƚŚ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ 

;ĂϵͿ�Ă�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ŝƚƐ�ĞƋƵĂů�
ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚǇ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶ͘��ŽƵŶĐŝů͛Ɛ��ƋƵĂů��ŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�KƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚǇ�;��KͿ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�
ĐŽǀĞƌƐ�Ăůů�ĂƐƉĞĐƚƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ůĞŐŝƐůĂƟŽŶ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ƉůĂŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞĚĞƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ͕�ƌĞƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ͕�ƌĞƚƌĞŶĐŚŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�
ƌĞĚƵŶĚĂŶĐǇ͘��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ���K�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂĚŚĞƌĞĚ�ƚŽ͘�dŚĞ���K�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�
WůĂŶ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�/WΘZ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ 

;ďͿ��Ă�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ƌĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ĐŽŵƉƌŝƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ƉĂĐŬĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�
ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ— 

;ŝͿ��ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂůĂƌǇ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂĐŬĂŐĞ͕�Ψϭϳϳ͕ϯϯϵ 

;ŝŝͿ��ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĂŶǇ�ďŽŶƵƐ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�
ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ĨŽƌŵ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂůĂƌǇ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ�E/> 

;ŝŝŝͿ��ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ƉĂǇĂďůĞ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ďǇ�ǁĂǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ͛Ɛ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�Žƌ�ƐĂůĂƌǇ�ƐĂĐƌŝĮĐĞ�ƚŽ�ĂŶǇ�
ƐƵƉĞƌĂŶŶƵĂƟŽŶ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ƚŽ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�Ă�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŽƌ�Ψϭϲ͕ϴϳϰ 

;ŝǀͿ��ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ĂŶǇ�ŶŽŶ-ĐĂƐŚ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ�ŵĂǇ�ĞůĞĐƚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂĐŬĂŐĞ�
ΨϯϬ͕ϬϬϬ 

;ǀͿ��ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ƉĂǇĂďůĞ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ďǇ�ǁĂǇ�ŽĨ�ĨƌŝŶŐĞ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ƚĂǆ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶǇ�ƐƵĐŚ�ŶŽŶ-ĐĂƐŚ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�E/> 

;ĐͿ��Ă�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ƌĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ĐŽŵƉƌŝƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ƉĂĐŬĂŐĞƐ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƐĞŶŝŽƌ�ƐƚĂī�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�;ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌͿ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ƌĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�
Ăůů�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞŶŝŽƌ�ƐƚĂī�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶĞĚ�;ŶŽƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ƐĞŶŝŽƌ�ƐƚĂīͿ͘�dŚĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĂƚĞĚ�ƐĞŶŝŽƌ�ƐƚĂī�
ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�^ϯϯϮ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽĐĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��Đƚ�ϭϵϵϯ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�DĂŶĂŐĞƌ͘ 
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;ĞͿ��ŝĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ůĞǀŝĞĚ�ĂŶ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƚŽƌŵǁĂƚĞƌ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ—Ă�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�
ĚĞƚĂŝůŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚŽƌŵǁĂƚĞƌ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǇĞĂƌ͘�^ƚŽƌŵǁĂƚĞƌ�
ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽǁŶƐŚŝƉƐ�ŽĨ�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ͕�/ǀĂŶŚŽĞ͕�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ�ĂŶĚ�tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ�
ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĐůĞĂŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽƐƐ�ƉŽůůƵƚĂŶƚ�ƚƌĂƉƐ�ŝŶ�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ�ĂŶĚ�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ͘��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŝƐ�ŝŶǀĞƐƟŐĂƟŶŐ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�
ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚŽƌŵǁĂƚĞƌ�ŽƵƚůĞƚƐ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�ZŝǀĞƌ�Ăƚ�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ�;ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂůůǇ�
ĨĂŝůĞĚͿ͘��ĂƉŝƚĂů�ƐƚŽƌŵǁĂƚĞƌ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�ƉŝƉĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉŝƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ�^ƚƌĞĞƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�ƐŝĚĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ŽǀĂů͕�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�^ĐŚŽŽů͘ 

Ψϭϭϲ͕Ϯϭϲ�ǁĂƐ�ĞǆƉĞŶĚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƐƚŽƌŵǁĂƚĞƌ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 
ΨϭϮϮ͕ϯϭϳ�ǁĂƐ�ĞǆƉĞŶĚĞĚ�ŽŶ��ĂƉŝƚĂů�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 
 
;ĞϭͿ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ůĞǀŝĞĚ�ĂŶ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽĂƐƚĂů�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŽŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ—Ă�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ĚĞƚĂŝůŝŶŐ�

ƚŚĞ�ĐŽĂƐƚĂů�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŽŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǇĞĂƌ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ŶŽ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽĂƐƚĂů�
ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŽŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘ 

;ĨͿ��Ă�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ͕�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐƵĐŚ�ŐƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ�ĂƐ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌ-
'ĞŶĞƌĂů�ĨƌŽŵ�ƟŵĞ�ƚŽ�ƟŵĞ͕�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů͛Ɛ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĨŽƌĐŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ�
ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŵƉĂŶŝŽŶ��ŶŝŵĂůƐ��Đƚ�ϭϵϵϴ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĂƚ��Đƚ͘��ŶŝŵĂů�
�ŽŶƚƌŽů�ŝŶ��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ŝƐƐƵĞ͘��ŽŶƐƚĂŶƚ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞĂů�
ǁŝƚŚ�ƌŽĂŵŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚƌĂǇŝŶŐ�ĂŶŝŵĂůƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ďŽƚŚ�ĚŽŐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂƚƐ͘� 

�ĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ƚŽ�ĂƐƐŝƐƚ�ĂŶŝŵĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĚŽŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂƚ�
ƚƌĂƉƐ�ƚŽ�ůŽĐĂů�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�;ŽŶ�Ă�ůŽĂŶ�ďĂƐŝƐͿ�ƚŽ�ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞ�ƌŽĂŵŝŶŐ�ĂŶŝŵĂůƐ͕�ĂƐƐŝƐƚ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƌƌĞŶĚĞƌ�ĂŶŝŵĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ƌĞŚŽŵĞͬƌĞŵŽǀĞ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͕�ƚĞŶĚ�ƚŽ�ŝŶũƵƌĞĚ�ĂŶŝŵĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞĞŬ�ǀĞƚĞƌŝŶĂƌǇ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�Z^W���ŝŶ�
�ƌŽŬĞŶ�,ŝůů͘�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŝƚĞŵƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞĚƵĐĂƚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ŽŶ�ĂŶŝŵĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ŵĂƩĞƌƐ�ƉĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ůŽĐĂů�ŶĞǁƐƉĂƉĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ŶŽƟĐĞƐ͘� 

�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ůŽĚŐĞĚ�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�KĸĐĞ�ŽĨ�>ŽĐĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƉŽƵŶĚ�ĚĂƚĂ�
ĐŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŽŐ�ĂƩĂĐŬ�ĚĂƚĂ͘�dŚĞ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞ�ƌĞůĂƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵƉĂŶŝŽŶ�ĂŶŝŵĂů�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�
ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ǁĂƐ�Ψϭϳϰ͕ϰϯϱ͘��ƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƚĂŐĞ�ŝƚ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĚĞĞŵĞĚ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽĐĂƚĞ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐ�Žī�ůĞĂƐŚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�
ĂŶǇ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ƚŽǁŶƐ͘ 

 

�ŶŝŵĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ƐƚĂƟƐƟĐƐ�ĂƌĞ�ůŝƐƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƉĂŐĞ 

STATUTORY REPORTING 

tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ŝƐ�ŽŌĞŶ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�
ǀĞŶƵĞ�ĨŽƌ�ǀŝƐŝƟŶŐ�ǀĞƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ��ƌŽŬĞŶ�,ŝůů�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�

Z^W���ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŵŝĐƌŽĐŚŝƉƉŝŶŐ 



�ŶŝŵĂů��ŽŶƚƌŽů�^ƚĂƟƐƟĐƐ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϮϬͬϮϭ 
  

  

DŽŶƚŚ 

  

  

^ĞŝǌĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�
/ŵƉŽƵŶĚĞĚ 

  

  

ZĞŚŽŵĞĚ 

  

  

ZĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�
KǁŶĞƌ 

  

  

�ƵƚŚĂŶŝƐĞĚ 

  

  

ZĞŐŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶƐ 

  

  

DŝĐƌŽ-�
ĐŚŝƉƉĞĚ 

  

  

WĞŶĂůƚǇ 

EŽƟĐĞƐ 

  

  

/Ŷ�WŽƵŶĚ�Ăƚ�
�ŶĚ�ŽĨ�
DŽŶƚŚ 

:ƵůǇ�ϮϬϮϬ ϭϮ��K'^ 

ϯ���d^ 

ϭϬ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϯ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

ϯ���d^ 

Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ 

�ƵŐ�ϮϬϮϬ ϰ��K'^ 

Ϯ���d^ 

Ϯ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϯ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

Ϯ���d^ 

Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ 

^ĞƉƚ�ϮϬϮϬ ϴ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

ϲ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ 

KĐƚ�ϮϬϮϬ ϵ��K'^ 

Ϯ���d^ 

ϵ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

Ϯ���d^ 

Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ 

EŽǀ�ϮϬϮϬ ϱ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

ϰ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ 

�ĞĐ�ϮϬϮϬ ϵ��K'^ 

ϲ���d^ 

ϵ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

ϲ���d^ 

Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ 

:ĂŶ�ϮϬϮϭ ϰ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

ϯ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ 

&Ğď�ϮϬϮϭ ϭϯ��K'^ 

ϭ���d^ 

ϭϬ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

ϯ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ 

DĂƌ�ϮϬϮϭ ϭϬ��K'^ 

ϭ���d^ 

ϭϬ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ 

�Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϮϭ ϭϬ��K'^ 

Ϯ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

ϭ��K'^ 

Ϯ���d^ 

Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ 

DĂǇ�ϮϬϮϭ ϵ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

ϵ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K' 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ 

:ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϮϭ ϳ��K'^ 

ϭ���d^ 

ϲ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

ϭ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ��K'^ 

ϭ���d^ 

Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ 

dŽƚĂů ϭϬϬ��K'^ 

ϭϲ���d^ 

ϳϴ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

ϲ��K'^ 

Ϭ���d^ 

ϲ��K'^ 

ϭϲ���d^ 

Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ Ϭ 

COMPANION ANIMAL CONTROL 



�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŶŽƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ��ŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ��Đƚ�ϭϵϳϵ͕�
ƚŚĞ�^ǁŝŵŵŝŶŐ�WŽŽůƐ��Đƚ�ϭϵϵϮ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�^ǁŝŵŵŝŶŐ�WŽŽůƐ�ZĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ϮϬϭϴ͘ 

WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ĞīĞĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ĨŽƌĐĞ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�
ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĞŶƚĞƌĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ 

�ĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶƐƉĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ƐǁŝŵŵŝŶŐ�ƉŽŽůƐ͘�/ŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŝŶƐƉĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ͗ 

ǁĞƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŽƵƌŝƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ǀŝƐŝƚŽƌ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƚǁŽ�;ϮͿ�ŝŶƐƉĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽůŝĐĞ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌƐ�
ƐǁŝŵŵŝŶŐ�ƉŽŽů�;ŶŽ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂůͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�hŶĚĞƌŐƌŽƵŶĚ�DŽƚĞů�Ăƚ�tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ͘ 

ǁĞƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƉƌĞŵŝƐĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�Ϯ�ĚǁĞůůŝŶŐƐ͘�EŽƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ 
ƌĞƐƵůƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ŝƐƐƵĂŶĐĞ�Ă�ĐĞƌƟĮĐĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƐϮϮ��ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ǁŝŵŵŝŶŐ�WŽŽůƐ��Đƚ͘�Eŝů 
ƌĞƐƵůƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ŝƐƐƵĂŶĐĞ�Ă�ĐĞƌƟĮĐĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ŶŽŶ-ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�Đů�Ϯϭ�^ǁŝŵŵŝŶŐ�WŽŽůƐ�ZĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶ�Eŝů 

 
/ŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ĂŶǇ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů�ƵƉŐƌĂĚĞ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ĞŶƚĞƌĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�
ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů�ƵƉŐƌĂĚĞ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĞŶƚĞƌĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ďǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 

 

��� 

STATUTORY REPORTING 

,ŝƐƚŽƌǇ�ĂďŽƵŶĚƐ�ŝŶ�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ͛Ɛ�ďƵŝůƚ�
ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ͘�dŚĞ�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ�,ŽƐƉŝƚĂů�ǁĂƐ�
ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ϭϴϳϵ�ĨƌŽŵ�ůŽĐĂů�ƐĂŶĚƐƚŽŶĞ͘�
tŚŝůĞ�ŝƚƐ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ŝŶƚĞŐƌŝƚǇ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶƐ͕�ŝƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�
ƌĞĮƩĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐŽŶĮŐƵƌĞĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂůůǇ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�
ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�Ă�ŵŽĚĞƌŶ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂů�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ  ͘

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�;WƵďůŝĐ��ĐĐĞƐƐͿ��Đƚ�ϮϬϬϵ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�
'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�;WƵďůŝĐ��ĐĐĞƐƐͿ�ZĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ϮϬϬϵ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ĚŝƐĐůŽƐƵƌĞƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�WƵďůŝĐ�/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ��ŝƐĐůŽƐƵƌĞ��Đƚ�ϭϵϵϰ͘��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ�
�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ĨŽƌŵĂů�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ƐƵƌƌŽƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐĐůŽƐƵƌĞƐ͘�KŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�
ŶĞǁ�ƐƚĂī�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ĚŝƐĐůŽƐƵƌĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌŝŐŚƚƐ͘ 

ZĂƚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŚĂƌŐĞƐ�ǁƌŝƩĞŶ�Žī�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϮϬͬϮϭ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�zĞĂƌ�ƚŽƚĂůůĞĚ�Ψϭ͕Ϭϲϳ͕Ϯϱϭ͘ϭϬ͘� 



GOAL 1 

A healthy and cohesive community receiving recognition and 

supported by coordinated, appropriate and affordable services 

KǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƐƚ�ϭϮ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ͕��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂĐƟǀĞ�ŝŶ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�
ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ͘ 

��ƐƚƌŽŶŐ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ďƵŝůƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌ�Z��/͘��ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƌƵŶƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ƌĂĚŝŽ�ƐƚĂƟŽŶ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�
ǀŽĐĂƟŽŶĂů�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵƐ͘��Ks/��ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ĚĞůĂǇƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŚĂĚ�ĂŶ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ŶŽƌŵĂůůǇ�
ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ďǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͕�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�EĞƚtĂƐƚĞ�ĂƌƚƐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ͘�,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉƐ�ĂƌĞ�
ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌĞďƵŝůƚ�ĂƐ�E^t�ŵŽǀĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟǀŝƚǇ͘��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĂůƐŽ�ŚĂƐ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉƐ�
ǁŝƚŚ�tĞƐƚ��ĂƌůŝŶŐ��ƌƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�&Ăƌ�tĞƐƚ�ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ��ƵƐƚƌĂůŝĂ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�DĂĂƌŝ�
DĂ�,ĞĂůƚŚ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘ 

tŚŝůĞ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ͕�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŵŽǀĞĚ�ĂŚĞĂĚ͘��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�
ƵƉŐƌĂĚĞĚ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƚŽŝůĞƚ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�ŝŶ�tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ͕�dŝůƉĂ�ĂŶĚ�^ƵŶƐĞƚ�^ƚƌŝƉ͕�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚŽƵƌŝƐƚƐ͘ 

�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŚŽůĚ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ��ǁĂƌĚƐ͘�ZƵŶ�ĂŶŶƵĂůůǇ͕�ƚŚĞ��ǁĂƌĚƐ�
ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�Ăůů�ŽĨ�ŽƵƌ�ƚŽǁŶƐ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�Ă�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞĂŶŝŶŐĨƵů�ǁĂǇ͘�tŚŝůĞ�ƚŚĞ�
�ǁĂƌĚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂŶŶŽƵŶĐĞĚ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ��ƵƐƚƌĂůŝĂ��ĂǇ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƌ�
&ŝƌƐƚ�EĂƟŽŶƐ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞŵĞŶƚ͘ 

OUR ACHIEVEMENTS 

�ƵƐƚƌĂůŝĂ��ĂǇ�ĐĞůĞďƌĂƟŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�/ǀĂŶŚŽĞ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞĚ�ƌĞĐŝƉŝĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ��ǁĂƌĚƐ͘� 
 
dŚĞƐĞ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ĂǁĂƌĚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂŶ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ǁĂǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĂŶŬŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�
ƋƵŝĞƚ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƌ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ͘��ǁĂƌĚĞĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶŬĞĚ�Ăƚ�
ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƟŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ͕�tŚŝƚĞ��ůŝīƐ͕�/ǀĂŶŚŽĞ�ĂŶĚ�
DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ͘ 



GOAL 2  

A strong regional economy supported by developing industries, 

strong businesses and increased employment 

�Ŷ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ĚŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ƚŽƵƌŝƐŵ�ŚĂƐ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚŝƌĞ͘��ŽƵŶĐŝů�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶĐĞĚ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ďǇ�ƵƉŐƌĂĚŝŶŐ�ƐŝŐŶƉŽƐƟŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƚŽǁŶƐ͕�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ǀŝƐŝƚŽƌƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚǇ�
ƚŽ�ĨĞĞů�ǁĞůĐŽŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶũŽǇ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǀŝƐŝƚŽƌ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ͘� 

,ĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ�ƚƌĂŝůƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞĞŶ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽƌĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ƐƚĂŐĞƐ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ůŽĐĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǀŝƐŝƚŽƌƐ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ůĞĂƌŶ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĞƉ�&ŝƌƐƚ�EĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ƵƌŽƉĞĂŶ�ŚĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƉĞƌŵĞĂƚĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚŝƌĞ͘ 

�Ɛ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͕��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�hŶŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�EĞǁĐĂƐƚůĞ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�Ă�,ĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ�
dƌĂŝů��ƉƉ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ďƵŝůĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚŽƵƌŝƐŵ�ƐĞĐƚŽƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ĚĞƐƟŶĂƟŽŶ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ͘ 

KǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵƌƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�WůĂŶ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͕��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ĂĂŬĂ��ƵůƚƵƌĂů��ĞŶƚƌĞ�
�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�WƵďůŝĐ�tŽƌŬƐ��ĚǀŝƐŽƌǇ�ƚŽ�ŵŽǀĞ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ƚŚĞ��ĂĂŬĂ��ƵůƚƵƌĂů��ĞŶƚƌĞ͘�dŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�
ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ�ŽĨ�ǁŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ůŽĐĂůůǇ�ĂƐ�͚ƚŚĞ�<ŶŽǆ�ĂŶĚ��ŽǁŶƐ͛�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁĂƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂů�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�
tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ͛Ɛ�ŚĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ�ŝŶ�ŝƚƐ�ŚĞǇĚĂǇ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƉŝǀŽƚĂů�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ŚƵď͘ 

:ŽŝŶƚůǇ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�E^t�ĂŶĚ��ƵƐƚƌĂůŝĂŶ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ƚŚĞ��ĂĂŬĂ��ƵůƚƵƌĂů��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ŝƐ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�
ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƐƚĂŐĞƐ͘�tŚŝůĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐĞǀĞƌĞůǇ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ��Ks/��ƚƌĂǀĞů�
ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƟŽŶƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵƌƐĞ�ŽĨ�ŝƚƐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͕�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ǁŝůů�ĞǀĞŶƚƵĂůůǇ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�
ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ͕�ĮƚŽƵƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ͘� 

OUR ACHIEVEMENTS 

�ŽƉŝ�,ŽůůŽǁ��ĂƌĂǀĂŶ�WĂƌŬ͕�ƐŝƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ďĂŶŬƐ�ŽĨ��ŽƉŝ�,ŽůůŽǁ͕�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĨĂŵŽƵƐ�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ�>ĂŬĞƐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘�/ƚ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�
ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĂŶĚ�
ƐŽĐŝĂů�ǀŝďƌĂŶĐǇ�ŽĨ�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ͕�^ƵŶƐĞƚ�
^ƚƌŝƉ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ŝŶ�
ŐĞŶĞƌĂů͘� 

dŽƵƌŝƐŵ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞƐƟŶĂƟŽŶ�ŵĂƌŬĞƟŶŐ͕�ŝƐ�
ǀŝƚĂů�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐ�ŽĨ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�
�ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ͘ 

 



GOAL 3  

A protected and supported natural environment and a 

sustainable and well-maintained built environment 

�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŝƐ�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ĂŶĚ�ďƵŝůƚ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ŝƐ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�
ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ͘�tŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ĚĞĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƋƵĂůŝĮĞĚ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�ƉůĂŶŶĞƌ͕��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�
ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƌďĂŶ�ůĂŶĚƐĐĂƉĞ�ŝƐ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ŝŶ�Ă�ŵĂŶŶĞƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ͘ 

tŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚĞĚ�,ĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ��ĚǀŝƐŽƌ͕�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĂƉƉůǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�^ƚĂƚĞ�
'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ŚĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƟĞƐ�–�ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĞǇ�ďĞ�ŚŽŵĞƐ͕�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐĞƐ�Žƌ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�
ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�–�ǁŝůů�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŚŽůĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŚĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ�ǀĂůƵĞ͕�ƐŽŵĞƚŚŝŶŐ�ǀŝƚĂů�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽŵŽƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞŐŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ŽƵƚďĂĐŬ�ƐĞƩůĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�E^t͘ 

�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ͘�/Ŷ�ĐŽŶũƵŶĐƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�tĞƐƚĞƌŶ�
>ŽĐĂů�>ĂŶĚƐ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ͕��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĞŶƚĞƌĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�Ă�ĨĞĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĞĞĚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁĂƐ�
ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ͘�tĞĞĚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ǀŝƚĂů�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ͘ 

/Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƌďĂŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ͕�ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�Ă�
ŚŝŐŚ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŽǀĞƌ�ŵĂŶǇ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘�tŝƚŚ�Ă�ůĂƌŐĞ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�ůŽĐĂů͕�ƵŶƐĞĂůĞĚ�ƌŽĂĚƐ͕�ŐƌĂĚŝŶŐ�ǁŽƌŬ�ƚĂŬĞƐ�
ŵƵĐŚ�ŽĨ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͛Ɛ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ͘��Ŷ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ĚŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ƚŽƵƌŝƐŵ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŚĂƐ�ŚŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�
ĨŽƌ�ƐĞĂůŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ�ŽŶ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƌŽĂĚƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŶŐ�ƌŽĂĚ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�DĞŶŝŶĚĞĞ�ĂŶĚ�
tĞŶƚǁŽƌƚŚ͕�ǀŝĂ�WŽŽŶĐĂƌŝĞ�;DZϲϴ�Ϳ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶĐĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘�dŚŝƐ�ΨϮϲ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�–�ƚŚƌĞĞ�
ǇĞĂƌ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ǁŝůů�ŽƉĞŶ�ƵƉ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂƌ�ǁĞƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ůŽĐĂů�ĞŶƚĞƌƉƌŝƐĞ͘ 

�ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ĐĞŶƚƌĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŚŝƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ůĞƚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͕�ĂŌĞƌ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ǁŽƌŬ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ůŽŶŐ�ƚĞƌŵ�ǀŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ͘ 

OUR ACHIEVEMENTS 

DĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�
tŝůĐĂŶŶŝĂ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�
ĨŽƌ��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�^ŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĂŶĚ�ŝƚƐ�
ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ͘�dŚĞ��ĂƌůŝŶŐͬ�ĂĂŬĂ�ZŝǀĞƌ�;ƉŝĐƚƵƌĞĚͿ�ŝƐ�
ǀŝƚĂů�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵůƚƵƌĂů͕�ƐŽĐŝĂů͕�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů�ĂŶĚ�
ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŚŽůĞ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶ͘� 
 
dŚĞ��ĂƌŬŝŶĚũŝ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƌĞůŝĞĚ�ŽŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ƌŝǀĞƌ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͕�ĂƐ�Ă�
ĨŽŽĚ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŚŝƐƚŽƌǇ͘ 
 
�Ɛ�Ă�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌůŝŶŐ�ZŝǀĞƌ�ZƵŶ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂů�
ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ŚŝƐƚŽƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶ�ŝƚ�ƐĞƌǀĞƐ�ĂƐ�Ă�
ĨŽĐĂů�ƉŽŝŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĚŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ƚŽƵƌŝƐŵ͘ 
 

WŚŽƚŽ͗�>ƵŬĞ��ůůĞŶ 
^ŬǇ�,ŝŐŚ�&ŝůŵ�ĂŶĚ�WŚŽƚŽ� 

/ŶƐƚĂŐƌĂŵ�ĂŶĚ�&ĂĐĞďŽŽŬ�ΛƐŬǇŚŝŐŚĮůŵĂŶĚƉŚŽƚŽ�� 



GOAL 4  

A consultative and professional organisation providing a high 

standard and efficient delivery of services 

�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ŝƚƐ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ͕�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�
ƐŽŵĞ�ŬĞǇ�ƐƚĂī�ƚŽ�ĨŽĐƵƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘�/ƚƐ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ďǇ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�
ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐƚƌĞĂŵ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŵĞĚŝĂ͕�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ƵƉŐƌĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�
�ŽƵŶĐŝů͛Ɛ�ĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�ǁĞďƐŝƚĞ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ǁĞůĐŽŵĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ǁĞďƐŝƚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ŵŽƌĞ�
ƐƚƌĞĂŵůŝŶĞĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞ�ŽŶůŝŶĞ͘��Ɛ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƵƉŐƌĂĚĞ�ǁĂƐ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐŝƚĂƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�Ğ-ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�
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Central Darling Shire Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and has its principal place of business
at:

Overview

21 Reid Street
Wilcannia NSW 2836

Council’s guiding principles are detailed in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

• principles applying to the exercise of functions generally by council,
• principles to be applied when making decisions,
• principles of community participation,
• principles of sound financial management, and
• principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.

A description of the nature of Council’s operations and its principal activities are provided in Note B1-2.

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our reporting is timely, complete and available at minimum cost. All press
releases, financial statements and other information are publicly available on our website: www.centraldarilng.nsw.gov.au.
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§Note/Subtotal§

Each year NSW local governments are required to present audited financial statements to their council and community.

§TocItem§§Subnote§

Introduction

The financial statements set out the financial performance, financial position and cash flows of Council for the financial year
ended 30 June 2021.

What you will find in the Statements

The format of the financial statements is standard across all NSW Councils and complies with both the accounting and reporting
requirements of Australian Accounting Standards and requirements as set down by the Office of Local Government.

The financial statements must be certified by senior staff as ‘presenting fairly’ the Council’s financial results for the year and
are required to be adopted by Council – ensuring both responsibility for and ownership of the financial statements.

About the Councillor/Management Statement

The financial statements incorporate five "primary" financial statements:

1. The Income Statement

About the Primary Financial Statements

Summarises Council's financial performance for the year, listing all income and expenses. This statement also displays
Council's original adopted budget to provide a comparison between what was projected and what actually occurred.

2. The Statement of Comprehensive Income
Primarily records changes in the fair value of Council's Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.

3. The Statement of Financial Position
A 30 June snapshot of Council's financial position indicating its assets, liabilities and “net wealth”.

4. The Statement of Changes in Equity
The overall change for the year (in dollars) of Council's "net wealth".

5. The Statement of Cash Flows
Indicates where Council's cash came from and where it was spent. This statement also displays Council's original adopted
budget to provide a comparison between what was projected and what actually occurred.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide greater detail and additional information on the five primary financial statements.

About the Notes to the Financial Statements

Council’s financial statements are required to be audited by the NSW Audit Office.

About the Auditor's Reports

In NSW the auditor provides 2 audit reports:

1. an opinion on whether the financial statements present fairly the Council’s financial performance and position, and
2. their observations on the conduct of the audit, including commentary on the Council’s financial performance and financial

position.

The financial statements are publicly available documents and must be presented at a Council meeting between seven days
and five weeks after the date of the audit report.

The public can make submissions to Council up to seven days subsequent to the public presentation of the financial statements.

Council is required to forward an audited set of financial statements to the Office of Local Government.

Who uses the Financial Statements?
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Central Darling Shire Council | Income Statement | For the year ended 30 June 2021

§Statement§

Original 
unaudited 

budget
  

Actual Actual
2021 $ '000 Notes 2021 2020

Income from continuing operations   
2,298 Rates and annual charges B2-1 2,396 2,348
8,712 User charges and fees B2-2 9,632 12,544

331 Other revenue B2-3 821 398
11,030 Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes B2-4 13,677 11,549
15,450 Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes B2-4 7,021 2,728

79 Interest and investment income B2-5 51 121
– Other income B2-6 33 103
– Net gains from the disposal of assets B4-1 63 –

37,900 Total income from continuing operations 33,694 29,791

Expenses from continuing operations   
5,606 Employee benefits and on-costs B3-1 5,646 4,778
9,146 Materials and services B3-2 16,506 13,973

88 Borrowing costs B3-3 29 21

3,960 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment for 
non-financial assets

B3-4
4,299 4,092

3,014 Other expenses B3-5 1,111 834
21,814 Total expenses from continuing operations 27,591 23,698

16,086 Operating result from continuing operations 6,103 6,093

16,086 Net operating result for the year attributable to Council 6,103 6,093

  

636 Net operating result for the year before grants and 
contributions provided for capital purposes (918) 3,365

The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Central Darling Shire Council | Statement of Comprehensive Income | For the year ended 30 June 2021

§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 Notes 2021 2020

Net operating result for the year – from Income Statement 6,103 6,093

§Subnote§

Other comprehensive income:
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result
Gain (loss) on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment C1-5 248 (5,946)
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating 
result 248 (5,946)

Total other comprehensive income for the year 248 (5,946)

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to 
Council 6,351 147

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Central Darling Shire Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Central Darling Shire Council | Statement of Financial Position | For the year ended 30 June 2021

§Statement§

$ '000 Notes 2021 2020

ASSETS   
Current assets   
Cash and cash equivalents C1-1 8,727 7,775
Receivables C1-3 7,268 3,061
Inventories C1-4 257 455
Total current assets 16,252 11,291

Non-current assets   
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment C1-5 174,720 168,414
Right of use assets C2-1 433 457
Investments accounted for using the equity method D2-1 1,140 1,359
Total non-current assets 176,293 170,230

Total assets 192,545 181,521

LIABILITIES   
Current liabilities   
Payables C3-1 1,696 1,135
Income received in advance C3-1 109 86
Contract liabilities C3-2 4,327 60
Lease liabilities C2-1 308 137
Borrowings C3-3 150 165
Employee benefit provisions C3-4 1,064 1,083
Total current liabilities 7,654 2,666

Non-current liabilities   
Lease liabilities C2-1 133 309
Borrowings C3-3 – 141
Employee benefit provisions C3-4 27 27
Provisions C3-5 717 715
Total non-current liabilities 877 1,192

Total liabilities 8,531 3,858

Net assets 184,014 177,663

EQUITY   
Accumulated surplus C4-1 127,008 120,905
IPPE revaluation reserve C4-1 57,006 56,758
Council equity interest 184,014 177,663

Total equity 184,014 177,663

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Financial Position
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Central Darling Shire Council | Statement of Changes in Equity | For the year ended 30 June 2021

§Note/Subtotal§

as at 30/06/21 as at 30/06/20

$ '000 Notes
Accumulated

surplus

IPPE 
revaluation 

reserve
Total

equity
Accumulated 

surplus

IPPE 
revaluation 

reserve
Total

equity

Opening balance at 1 July 120,905 56,758 177,663 114,812 62,704 177,516
Restated opening balance 120,905 56,758 177,663 114,812 62,704 177,516

§Subnote§

Net operating result for the year 6,103 – 6,103 6,093 – 6,093
Restated net operating result for the period 6,103 – 6,103 6,093 – 6,093

Other comprehensive income
Gain (loss) on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment C1-5 – 248 248 – (5,946) (5,946)
Other comprehensive income – 248 248 – (5,946) (5,946)

Total comprehensive income 6,103 248 6,351 6,093 (5,946) 147

Closing balance at 30 June 127,008 57,006 184,014 120,905 56,758 177,663

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Central Darling Shire Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2021
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Central Darling Shire Council | Statement of Cash Flows | For the year ended 30 June 2021

§Statement§

Original 
unaudited 

budget
  

Actual Actual
2021 $ '000 Notes 2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities   
Receipts:   

1,839 Rates and annual charges 2,864 2,549
8,625 User charges and fees 7,519 12,209

79 Investment and interest revenue received 164 275
26,480 Grants and contributions 24,065 14,527

– Other 1,027 2,077
Payments:   

(5,606) Employee benefits and on-costs (5,816) (4,481)
(11,430) Materials and services (17,430) (14,712)

(12) Borrowing costs (29) (21)
– Bonds, deposits and retention amounts refunded – (2)
– Other (1,078) (1,519)

19,975 Net cash flows from operating activities G1-1 11,286 10,902

Cash flows from investing activities   
Receipts:   

– Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 63 –
Payments:   

(19,596) Purchase of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (9,902) (5,907)
(19,596) Net cash flows from investing activities (9,839) (5,907)

Cash flows from financing activities   
Payments:   

(153) Repayment of borrowings (156) (149)
(442) Principal component of lease payments (339) (261)
(595) Net cash flows from financing activities (495) (410)

(216) Net change in cash and cash equivalents 952 4,585

3,830 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 7,775 3,190
3,614 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year C1-1 8,727 7,775

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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These financial statements were authorised for issue by Council on 22 September 2021. Council has the power to amend and
reissue these financial statements in cases where critical information is received from public submissions or where the OLG
directs Council to amend the financial statements.

§TocItem§§TocItem§
§Subnote§

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1993 (Act) and Local Government (General) Regulation 2005
(Regulation), and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

Council is a not for-profit entity.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain
financial assets and liabilities and certain classes of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment and investment property.

Historical cost convention

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Council's accounting policies.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Council and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

Council makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year include:

(i) estimated fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment – refer Note C1-5.
(ii) estimated tip remediation provisions – refer Note C3-5.
(iii) employee benefit provisions – refer Note C3-4.

(i) Impairment of receivables

Significant judgements in applying the Council's accounting policies

Council has made a significant judgement about the impairment of a number of its receivables – refer Note C1-3.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), all money and property received
by Council is held in the Council’s Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in the Council’s Trust Fund.

Monies and other assets received by Council

The Consolidated Fund

Cash and other assets of the following entities have been included as part of the Consolidated Fund:

◾ General purpose operations
◾ Water service
◾ Sewerage service

continued on next page ... 

A About Council and these financial statements

A1-1 Basis of preparation
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The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended), a separate and
distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all money and property received by the council in trust which must be applied
only for the purposes of, or in accordance with, the trusts relating to those monies.

Trust monies and property subject to Council’s control have been included in these reports.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the expense.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
that are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

Volunteer services

Volunteer Services are considered to be non-material.

New accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

New accounting standards and interpretations issued not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations (ie. pronouncements) have been published by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2021 reporting period.

Council has elected not to apply any of these pronouncements in these financial statements before their operative dates.

As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements Council does not consider that any of these new (and still to be
applied) standards and interpretations are likely to have a material impact on the Council's future financial statements, financial
position, financial performance or cash flows.

Council has been under administration since 23 December 2013 due to its poor financial position.

Going concern

Since that time Council has operated on an altered business model by reducing staff and contractors and tightly controlling
expenditure.

The financial statements for the 2021 year have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Management believe Council is a going concern as it forecasts positive net cash flows for future years in its Long Term
Financial Plan.

Central Darling Shire received Ministerial approval under section 410 of the Local Government Act 1993, to allow Council to
continue utilising restricted cash reserves to cover operational shortfalls until 30 June 2021, at which time any such outstanding
funds must be restored.

During the year Council adopted the following accounting standards and interpretations (as issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board) which were mandatorily effective from 1 July 2020:

New accounting standards adopted during the year

◾ AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor and associated amendments

◾ AASB 2018- 6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Definition of a business

continued on next page ... 

A1-1 Basis of preparation (continued)
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◾ AASB 2018 – 7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Definition of material

◾ AASB 2019 – 3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

◾ AASB 2019 – 5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure of the Effect of New IFRS Standards
Not Yet Issued in Australia

◾ AASB 2019 – 7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure of GFS Measures of Key Fiscal
Aggregates and GAAP / GFS Reconciliations

◾ AASB 2020 – 4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions

There has been no material impact on Council's financial statements resulting from the adoption of these new accounting
standards.

A1-1 Basis of preparation (continued)
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Income, expenses and assets have been directly attributed to the following functions or activities. Details of those functions or activities are provided in Note B1-2.

Income Expenses Operating result Grants and contributions Carrying amount of assets
$ '000 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Functions or activities
Governance – – 259 135 (259) (135) – – – –
Administration 309 772 3,186 4,505 (2,877) (3,733) – – 10,956 9,897
Public order and safety 188 119 664 398 (476) (279) 102 98 13,767 1,496
Environment 617 859 919 616 (302) 243 – 1,605 740 782
Community services and education 38 92 146 156 (108) (64) 2 – 2,085 2,173
Housing and community amenities 1,458 2,013 1,609 835 (151) 1,178 1,382 – 6,908 4,861
Water supplies 1,165 1,039 1,920 1,565 (755) (526) – 80 27,344 27,955
Sewerage services 782 363 321 231 461 132 300 111 5,303 4,704
Recreation and culture 1,570 665 915 672 655 (7) 1,556 600 5,094 6,701
Transport and communications 19,066 16,408 15,275 13,684 3,791 2,724 11,320 2,007 119,760 122,410
Economic affairs 1,578 541 2,377 901 (799) (360) – 60 588 542
General purpose income 6,923 6,920 – – 6,923 6,920 6,036 6,000 – –
Total functions and activities 33,694 29,791 27,591 23,698 6,103 6,093 20,698 10,561 192,545 181,521

B Financial Performance

B1 Functions or activities

B1-1 Functions or activities – income, expenses and assets
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Governance

§TocItem§§TocItem§
§Subnote§

Details relating to the Council’s functions or activities as reported in B1-1 are as follows:

Includes costs relating to Council's role as a component of democratic government, including elections, subscriptions to local
authority associations, meetings of Council and policy-making committees, public disclosures (e.g. GIPA) and legislative
compliance.

Administration

Includes corporate support, executive services, shire services and any other Council policy compliance.

Public order and safety

Includes Council's fire and emergency services levy, fire protection, emergency services, enforcement of regulations and
animal control.

Health

Includes immunisations, food control and health clinics.

Environment

Includes noxious plan and insect/vermin control; other environmental protection; solid wast management, including domestic
waste; other waste management; other sanitation; and garbage, street cleaning, drainage and stormwater management.

Community services and education

Includes administration and education; social protection (welfare); migrant, Aboriginal and other community services and
administration, youth services; aged and disabled services and children's services.

Housing and community amenities

Includes public cemeteries; public conveniences; street lighting; town planning; and other community amenities

Water supplies

Supply of water services to W ilcannia, Menindee, White Cliffs and Ivanhoe.

Sewerage services

Supply of sewerage services to W ilcannia.

Recreation and culture

Includes community centres and halls, sporting grounds, venues, swimming pools, parks and gardens, and other sporting,
recreational and cultural services.

Transport and communications

Includes sealed and unsealed roads, bridges, footpaths, parking areas, and aerodromes.

Economic affairs

Includes camping areas and caravan parks, tourism and area promotion, and other business undertakings.

General purpose income

Includes grant funding not directly attributable to the above categories.

B1-2 Components of functions or activities
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$ '000 Timing 2021 2020

Ordinary rates

§TocItem§§Subnote§

Residential 1 352 350
Farmland 1 473 461
Business 1 45 45
Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory) (15) (15)
Rates levied to ratepayers 855 841

Pensioner rate subsidies received 2 8 8
Total ordinary rates 863 849

Annual charges
(pursuant to s.496, s.496A, s.496B, s.501 & s.611)

Domestic waste management services 1 515 502
Water supply services 1 656 653
Sewerage services 1 271 253
Waste management services (non-domestic) 1 101 101
Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory) 1 (22) (22)
Annual charges levied 1,521 1,487

Pensioner subsidies received:
– Water 2 3 3
– Sewerage 2 1 1
– Domestic waste management 2 8 8
Total annual charges 1,533 1,499

Total rates and annual charges 2,396 2,348

Council has used 2019 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenue at the beginning of the rating period to which they relate. Prepaid rates
are recognised as a financial liability until the beginning of the rating period.

Accounting policy

Pensioner rebates relate to reductions in rates and certain annual charges for eligible pensioners’ place of residence in the
local government council area that are not subsidised by the NSW Government.

Pensioner rate subsidies are received from the NSW Government to provide a contribution towards the pensioner rebates and
are recognised within the underlying revenue item based on their substance.

B2 Sources of income

B2-1 Rates and annual charges
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$ '000 Timing 2021 2020

Specific user charges
(per s.502 - specific 'actual use' charges)
Water supply services 2 457 345
Total specific user charges 457 345

Other user charges and fees
(i) Fees and charges – statutory and regulatory functions (per s.608)
Planning and building regulation 2 – 34
Private works – section 67 2 1,256 697
Section 10.7 certificates (EP&A Act) 2 6 –
Section 603 certificates 2 10 –
Town planning 2 27 –
Total fees and charges – statutory/regulatory 1,299 731

(ii) Fees and charges – other (incl. general user charges (per s.608))
Caravan park 2 58 24
Cemeteries 2 13 11
Community centres 2 12 –
Multipurpose centre 2 36 –
Transport for NSW works (state roads not controlled by Council) 2 7,746 11,337
Swimming centres 2 3 –
Waste disposal tipping fees 2 7 55
Water connection fees 2 1 –
Rent and hire of council property 2 – 6
Other 2 – 35
Total fees and charges – other 7,876 11,468

Total user charges and fees 9,632 12,544

Timing of revenue recognition for user charges and fees
User charges and fees recognised over time (1)  – –
User charges and fees recognised at a point in time (2)  9,632 12,544
Total user charges and fees 9,632 12,544

Revenue arising from user charges and fees is recognised when or as the performance obligation is completed and the
customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

Accounting policy

The performance obligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment
terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases such as caravan parks, the customer is required to
pay on arrival or a deposit in advance. There is no material obligation for Council in relation to refunds or returns.

Where an upfront fee is charged such as joining fees for the leisure centre the fee is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the expected life of the membership.

Licences granted by Council are all either short-term or low value and all revenue from licences is recognised at the time that
the licence is granted rather than over the term of the licence.

B2-2 User charges and fees
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$ '000 Timing 2021 2020

Fines – other 1 2 –
Legal fees recovery – rates and charges (extra charges) 2 22 43
Legal fees recovery – other 2 5 –
Commissions and agency fees 2 104 200
Diesel rebate 1 24 –
Insurance claims recoveries 1 52 9
Sales of inventories 2 123 –
Sales – general 1 46 87
Aboriginal communities water & sewer scheme 1 239 –
Other 1 204 59
Total other revenue 821 398

Timing of revenue recognition for other revenue
Other revenue recognised over time (1)  569 –
Other revenue recognised at a point in time (2)  252 398
Total other revenue 821 398

Accounting policy for other revenue
Where the revenue relates to a contract with customer, the revenue is recognised when or as the performance obligation is
completed and the customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

Where the revenue relates to a contract which is not enforceable or does not contain sufficiently specific performance
obligations then revenue is recognised when an unconditional right to a receivable arises or the cash is received, which is
earlier.

Other revenues are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, or when the penalty has been applied,
whichever occurs first.

B2-3 Other revenue
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Operating Operating Capital Capital
$ '000 Timing 2021 2020 2021 2020

General purpose grants and non-developer 
contributions (untied)
General purpose (untied)
Current year allocation
Financial assistance – general component 1 2,120 2,070 – –
Financial assistance – local roads component 1 795 843 – –
Payment in advance - future year allocation
Financial assistance – general component 1 2,268 2,233 – –
Financial assistance – local roads component 1 853 854 – –
Amount recognised as income during current
year 6,036 6,000 – –

Special purpose grants and non-developer 
contributions (tied)
Cash contributions
Previously specific grants:
Water supplies 2 – – 400 –
Bushfire and emergency services 2 102 98 – –
Economic development 2 – – – 60
Environmental programs 1 – 139 – 2,044
Heritage and cultural 2 21 12 10 –
Recreation and culture 1 10 11 45 577
Storm/flood damage 2,125 – – –
Airport 2 – – 76 4
Youth 1 2 2 – –
Water and sewer 1 – 68 – 43
Street lighting 1 8 – – –
Transport (roads to recovery) 2 2,115 1,503 – –
Transport (other roads and bridges funding) 2 – – 3,788 –
Other specific grants 2 50 – 2,402 –
Previously contributions:
Transport for NSW contributions (regional roads, block
grant) 2 3,208 3,716 – –
Sewerage (excl. section 64 contributions) 2 – – 300 –
Total special purpose grants and 
non-developer contributions – cash 7,641 5,549 7,021 2,728

Total special purpose grants and 
non-developer contributions (tied) 7,641 5,549 7,021 2,728

Total grants and non-developer 
contributions 13,677 11,549 7,021 2,728

Comprising:
– Commonwealth funding  8,151 7,557 1,409 1,854
– State funding  5,526 274 4,897 814
– Other funding  – 3,718 715 60

13,677 11,549 7,021 2,728

B2-4 Grants and contributions
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Developer contributions

Operating Operating Capital Capital
$ '000 2021 2020 2021 2020

Total grants and contributions 13,677 11,549 7,021 2,728

Timing of revenue recognition for grants and contributions
Grants and contributions recognised over time (1) 6,056 – 45 –
Grants and contributions recognised at a point in time (2) 7,621 11,549 6,976 2,728
Total grants and contributions 13,677 11,549 7,021 2,728

B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)
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Unspent grants and contributions

Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on the condition they be spent in a specified manner or in a future 
period but which are not yet spent in accordance with those conditions are as follows:

Operating Operating Capital Capital
$ '000 2021 2020 2021 2020

Unspent grants and contributions
Unspent funds at 1 July – 2 60 –
Add: Funds received for the provision of

goods and services 13,677 – 11,248 60
Less: Funds received in the current period and

now spent (13,677) (2) (6,921) –
Less: Funds received in prior year but revenue

recognised and funds spent in current
year – – (60) –

Unspent funds at 30 June – – 4,327 60
 

Grants and contributions – enforceable agreement with sufficiently specific performance obligations

§Subnote§

Accounting policy

Grant and contribution revenue from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance
obligations is recognised as or when control of each performance obligations is transferred.

The performance obligations vary according to the agreement but include the provision of goods or services or the achievment
of milestone deliverables. Payment terms vary depending on the terms of the grant, cash is received upfront for some grants
and on the achievement of certain payment milestones for others.

Performance obligations may be satisfied either at a point in time or over time and this is reflected in the revenue recognition
pattern. Point in time recognition occurs when the beneficiary obtains control of the goods / services at a single time (e.g.
completion of the project when a report / outcome is provided), whereas over time recognition is where the control of the
services is ongoing throughout the project (e.g. provision of community health services through the year).

Where control is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed to be the
most appropriate methods to reflect the transfer of benefit.

Capital grants

Capital grants received by Council under an enforceable contract for the acquisition or construction of infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment to identified specifications which will be under Council’s control on completion are recognised as revenue
as and when the obligation to construct or purchase is completed.

For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since this is
deemed to be the most appropriate measure of the completeness of the construction project.

For acquisitions of assets, the revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlled by the Council.

Other grants and contributions

Assets, including cash, received from other grants and contributions are recognised at fair value when the asset is received.
Council considers whether there are any related liability or equity items associated with the asset which are recognised in
accordance with the relevant accounting standard.

Once the assets and liabilities have been recognised then income is recognised for any remaining asset value at the time
that the asset is received.

B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)
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$ '000 2021 2020

Interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost
– Overdue rates and annual charges (incl. special purpose rates) 49 118
– Cash and investments 2 3
Total interest and investment income (losses) 51 121

Interest and investment income is attributable to:
Unrestricted investments/financial assets:
Overdue rates and annual charges (general fund) 19 56
General Council cash and investments 6 3
Restricted investments/funds – external:
Water fund operations 23 53
Sewerage fund operations 3 9
Total interest and investment income 51 121

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate at the date that interest is earned.
Accounting policy

 

B2-6 Other income
§Subnote§

$ '000 Notes 2021 2020

Rental income
Other lease income
Leaseback fees - council vehicles 3 2
Other 30 101
Total Other lease income 33 103

Total rental income C2-2 33 103

Total other income 33 103

B2-5 Interest and investment income
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$ '000 2021 2020

Salaries and wages 4,582 3,974
Employee leave entitlements (ELE) 458 494
Superannuation 433 318
Workers’ compensation insurance 216 123
Fringe benefit tax (FBT) 27 45
Protective clothing 3 –
Other 155 –
Total employee costs 5,874 4,954

§TocItem§§Subnote§

Less: capitalised costs (228) (176)
Total employee costs expensed 5,646 4,778

Number of ‘full-time equivalent’ employees (FTE) at year end 44 46

Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee.
Accounting policy

Retirement benefit obligations

All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes to various defined
benefit plans and defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees.

Superannuation plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Council participates in a defined benefit plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, however, sufficient
information to account for the plan as a defined benefit is not available and therefore Council accounts for its obligations to
defined benefit plans on the same basis as its obligations to defined contribution plans, i.e. as an expense when it becomes
payable – refer to Note E3-1 for more information.

B3 Costs of providing services

B3-1 Employee benefits and on-costs
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$ '000 Notes 2021 2020

Raw materials and consumables 13,432 12,554
Contractor and consultancy costs 556 157
Audit Fees F2-1 143 63
Previously other expenses:
Administrator fees and associated expenses F1-2 227 –
Advertising 21 18
Bank charges 5 9
Cleaning 47 –
Computer software charges 182 –
Electricity and heating 289 243
Fire control expenses 101 –
Insurance 532 391
Office expenses (including computer expenses) 195 –
Postage 4 –
Printing and stationery 48 28
Street lighting 17 42
Subscriptions and publications 42 157
Telephone and communications 202 102
Valuation fees 53 13
Cost of sales 86 –
Travel expenses 40 –
Training costs (other than salaries and wages) 86 103
Other expenses 4 –
Legal expenses:
– Legal expenses: debt recovery 187 47
– Legal expenses: other – 16
Expenses from short-term leases 7 30
Total materials and services 16,506 13,973

Total materials and services 16,506 13,973

Accounting policy
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the Council receives the goods or services.

B3-2 Materials and services
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$ '000 2021 2020

(i) Interest bearing liability costs
Interest on leases 9 7
Interest on loans 20 14
Total interest bearing liability costs 29 21

Total interest bearing liability costs expensed 29 21

Total borrowing costs expensed 29 21

Accounting policy
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required 
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

B3-3 Borrowing costs
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$ '000 Notes 2021 2020

Depreciation and amortisation
Plant and equipment 191 125
Furniture and fittings 1 –
Infrastructure: C1-5

– Buildings – non-specialised 826 852
– Other structures 262 231
– Roads 1,858 1,861
– Stormwater drainage 25 25
– Water supply network 668 636
– Sewerage network 97 86
Right of use assets C2-1 358 250
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration assets:
– Tip assets C3-5,C1-5 13 26
Total gross depreciation and amortisation costs 4,299 4,092

Total depreciation and amortisation costs 4,299 4,092

Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment for 
non-financial assets 4,299 4,092

Accounting policy

Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives are included in Note C1-5 for IPPE.

Depreciation and amortisation

Council assets held at fair value that are not held primarily for their ability to generate net cash flow, and that are deemed to
be specialised, are not tested for impairment since these assets are assessed on an annual basis to ensure that the carrying
amount is not materially different from fair value and therefore an impairment loss would be captured during this assessment.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

Other non-financial assets that do not meet the criteria above are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).

Impairment losses for revalued assets are firstly offset against the amount in the revaluation surplus for the class of asset,
with only the excess to be recognised in the Income Statement.

B3-4 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets
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$ '000 Notes 2021 2020

Impairment of receivables
Other 655 600
Total impairment of receivables C1-3 655 600

Net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method
Joint arrangements 219 102
Total net share of interests in joint ventures and associates 
using the equity method D2-1 219 102

Other
Contributions/levies to other levels of government
– Emergency services levy (includes FRNSW, SES, and RFS levies) 140 130
– Other contributions/levies 86 –
Donations, contributions and assistance to other organisations (Section 356) 11 2
Total other 237 132
Total other expenses 1,111 834

Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis when Council has an obligation for the expenses.
Accounting policy

Impairment expenses are recognised when identified.

B3-5 Other expenses
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$ '000 Notes 2021 2020

Gain (or loss) on disposal of plant and equipment C1-5

Proceeds from disposal – plant and equipment 63 –
Gain (or loss) on disposal 63 –

Net gain (or loss) on disposal of assets 63 –

§TocItem§§Subnote§

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. The gain or loss on sale of an
asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the buyer and the asset is de-recognised.

Accounting policy

B4 Gains or losses

B4-1 Gain or loss from the disposal, replacement and de-recognition of assets
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Council’s original budget was adopted by the Council on 22/07/2020 and is not required to be audited. The original projections
on which the budget was based have been affected by a number of factors. These include state and federal government
decisions, including new grant programs, changing economic activity, environmental factors, and by decisions made by
Council.

§TocItem§§Subnote§

While these General Purpose Financial Statements include the original budget adopted by Council, the Act requires Council to
review its financial budget on a quarterly basis, so it is able to manage the variation between actuals and budget that invariably
occur during the year.

Material variations of more than 10% between original budget and actual results or where the variance is considered material
by nature are explained below.

Variation Key: F = Favourable budget variation, U = Unfavourable budget variation.

 2021 2021 2021
$ '000 Budget Actual -------- Variance --------

REVENUES

Rates and annual charges 2,298 2,396 98 4% F
Write-offof bad debts 

User charges and fees 8,712 9,632 920 11% F
Additional RMS works completed during the year, that were not included in Council's orginal budget.

Other revenues 331 821 490 148% F
Reallocation of amounts due to implementing a new accounting system approach.

Operating grants and contributions 11,030 13,677 2,647 24% F
The favourable variance is indicative of Council's conservative appraoch to estimating grants for the Annual Budget.  
Additional funding was recieved for the following grants: Roads to Recovery, Bushfire and Emergancy and Federal 
Assistance funding.

Capital grants and contributions 15,450 7,021 (8,429) (55)% U
Major projects incomplete and grant funds transferred to contract liability to be taken up next period.

Interest and investment revenue 79 51 (28) (35)% U
Reduction in interest on rates & charges due to 6 month interest free period mandated due to COVID-19.

Net gains from disposal of assets – 63 63 ∞ F
Council does not budget for the potential sale of plant.

Other income – 33 33 ∞ F
Reallocation of amounts due to implementing a new accounting system approach.

EXPENSES

Employee benefits and on-costs 5,606 5,646 (40) (1)% U

Materials and services 9,146 16,506 (7,360) (80)% U
Increased works due to increased operating grants and reallocation due to new accounting system approach.

Borrowing costs 88 29 59 67% F
Interest expense over-estimated as part of budget preparation

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of 
non-financial assets 3,960 4,299 (339) (9)% U

continued on next page ... 
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 2021 2021 2021
$ '000 Budget Actual -------- Variance --------

Additional depreciation due to roads revaluation in the 2020 year.

Other expenses 3,014 1,111 1,903 63% F
Increased share of operating deficit from FWJO.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities 19,975 11,286 (8,689) (43)% U
Expenditure from operatiog grants, while an increase on last period, was not as high as budgeted for.

Cash flows from investing activities (19,596) (9,839) 9,757 (50)% F
Expenditure from capital grants not as high as budgeted for.

Cash flows from financing activities (595) (495) 100 (17)% F
The value of leased plant & equipment was less than budgeted for.

B5-1 Material budget variations (continued)
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$ '000 2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and at bank 4,777 7,775

§TocItem§§TocItem§
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Cash-equivalent assets
– Short-term deposits 3,950 –
Total cash and cash equivalents 8,727 7,775
 
§Subnote§

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents per Statement of Financial Position 8,727 7,775
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows 8,727 7,775
 

For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include: cash on hand; deposits held at call
with financial institutions; other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value; and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.

§Subnote§

Accounting policy

C Financial position

C1 Assets we manage

C1-1 Cash and cash equivalents
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2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 8,727 – 7,775 –

§TocItem§§TocItem§
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attributable to:
External restrictions 6,518 – 2,958 –
Unrestricted 2,209 – 4,817 –

8,727 – 7,775 –
 

$ '000 2021 2020

Details of restrictions

§Total§

External restrictions – included in liabilities
Specific purpose unexpended grants – general fund 4,211 18
Specific purpose unexpended grants – water fund – 42
Specific purpose unexpended grants – sewer fund 116 –
External restrictions – included in liabilities 4,327 60

External restrictions – other
External restrictions included in cash, cash equivalents and investments above 
comprise:
Water fund 1,213 1,480
Sewer fund 624 551
Domestic waste management 354 867
External restrictions – other 2,191 2,898

Total external restrictions 6,518 2,958

Total restrictions 6,518 2,958

C1-2 Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments
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2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Purpose

§TocItem§§TocItem§
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Rates and annual charges 747 – 1,305 –
Interest and extra charges 221 – 603 –
User charges and fees 3,439 – 1,391 –
Government grants and subsidies 2,214 – 20 –
Net GST/PAYG receivable 1,524 – 1,072 –
Other debtors 6 – – –
Total 8,151 – 4,391 –

Less: provision of impairment
Rates and annual charges (650) – (740) –
Interest and extra charges (133) – (402) –
User charges and fees (100) – (188) –
Total provision for impairment – 
receivables (883) – (1,330) –

Total net receivables 7,268 – 3,061 –
 

Externally restricted receivables
§Subnote§

Water supply
– Rates and availability charges 690 – 1,019 –
Sewerage services
– Rates and availability charges 94 – 156 –
– Other 17 – 16 –
Total external restrictions 801 – 1,191 –

Unrestricted receivables 6,467 – 1,870 –

Total net receivables 7,268 – 3,061 –
 

$ '000 2021 2020

Movement in provision for impairment of receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year (calculated in accordance with AASB 139) 1,330 730
Movement in provisions recognised during the year (447) 600
Balance at the end of the year 883 1,330

§Subnote§
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Accounting policy

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis.
Impairment

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, and when
estimating ECL, the Council considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on Council’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment, and including forward-looking information.

When considering the ECL for rates debtors, Council takes into account that unpaid rates represent a charge against the
rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold. For non-rates debtors, Council uses the presumption
that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant increase in credit risk.

The Council uses the presumption that a financial asset is in default when:

continued on next page ... 

C1-3 Receivables
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• the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Council in full, without recourse by the Council to actions
such as realising security (if any is held) or

• the financial assets (for non-rates debtors) are more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contract, and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied using a probability weighted approach.

On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12 months is recognised. Where the
asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are estimated and recognised.

Council uses the simplified approach for trade receivables where the expected lifetime credit losses are recognised on day 1.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting period.

The Council writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or when the receivables are over 5 years past due, whichever occurs first.

Where the Council renegotiates the terms of receivables due from certain customers, the new expected cash flows are
discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value is recognised in profit or loss.

Rates and annual charges outstanding are secured against the property.

C1-3 Receivables (continued)
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2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Inventories at cost
Stores and materials 257 – 455 –
Total inventories at cost 257 – 455 –

Total inventories 257 – 455 –

§TocItem§§TocItem§
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Accounting policy

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are
assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods

C1-4 Inventories
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By aggregated 
asset class At 1 July 2020 Asset movements during the reporting period At 30 June 2021

$ '000
Gross carrying 

amount

Accumulated 
depreciation

and impairment

Net
carrying
amount

Additions 
renewals   1

Additions new 
assets

Depreciation 
expense WIP transfers

Adjustments 
and transfers

Revaluation 
increments to 
equity (ARR)

Gross carrying 
amount

Accumulated 
depreciation

and impairment

Net
carrying
amount

Capital work in progress 2,572 – 2,572 1,292 3,193 – (146) – – 6,911 – 6,911
Plant and equipment 4,153 (2,525) 1,628 – 582 (191) – – – 4,568 (2,550) 2,018
Furniture and fittings 17 – 17 – – (1) – – – 17 (1) 16

§TocItem§
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Land:
– Operational land 1,126 – 1,126 – – – – 81 – 1,207 – 1,207
– Community land 523 – 523 – – – – – – 523 – 523
Infrastructure:
– Buildings – non-specialised 33,952 (21,582) 12,370 224 351 (826) 146 – – 34,673 (22,408) 12,265
– Other structures 8,170 (5,354) 2,816 696 414 (262) – – – 9,279 (5,615) 3,664
– Roads, bridges, footpaths 149,859 (32,500) 117,359 2,686 – (1,858) – – – 152,545 (34,358) 118,187
– Stormwater drainage 1,379 (685) 694 – – (25) – – – 1,379 (710) 669
– Water supply network 45,568 (20,234) 25,334 167 384 (668) – (81) 225 46,455 (21,095) 25,360
– Sewerage network 6,182 (2,270) 3,912 13 – (97) – – 23 6,240 (2,388) 3,852
Reinstatement, rehabilitation 
and restoration assets - refer 
Note C3-5:
– Tip assets 488 (425) 63 – – (13) – – – 487 (439) 48
Total infrastructure, property, 
plant and equipment 253,989 (85,575) 168,414 5,078 4,924 (3,941) – – 248 264,284 (89,564) 174,720

(1) Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to the acquisition of new assets).

C1-5 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
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By aggregated 
asset class At 1 July 2019 Asset movements during the reporting period At 30 June 2020

$ '000
Gross carrying 

amount

Accumulated 
depreciation

and impairment

Net
carrying
amount

Additions 
renewals   1

Additions new 
assets

Depreciation 
expense WIP transfers

Adjustments 
and transfers

Revaluation 
decrements to 

equity (ARR)

Revaluation 
increments to 
equity (ARR)

Gross carrying 
amount

Accumulated 
depreciation

and impairment

Net
carrying
amount

Capital work in progress 2,682 – 2,682 5,189 – – (5,299) – – – 2,572 – 2,572
Plant and equipment 3,405 (2,400) 1,005 – 748 (125) – – – – 4,153 (2,525) 1,628
Furniture and fittings – – – – 17 – – – – – 17 – 17
Land:
– Operational land 458 – 458 – – – – – – 668 1,126 – 1,126
– Community land 523 – 523 – – – – – – – 523 – 523
Infrastructure:
– Buildings – non-specialised 33,402 (20,730) 12,672 – – (852) 550 – – – 33,952 (21,582) 12,370
– Other structures 7,288 (5,123) 2,165 – – (231) 882 – – – 8,170 (5,354) 2,816
– Roads 151,083 (28,582) 122,501 – – (1,861) 3,820 – (7,101) – 149,859 (32,500) 117,359
– Stormwater drainage 1,379 (660) 719 – – (25) – – – – 1,379 (685) 694
– Water supply network 45,139 (19,598) 25,541 – – (636) – – – 429 45,568 (20,234) 25,334
– Sewerage network 6,123 (2,184) 3,939 – – (86) – – – 58 6,182 (2,270) 3,912
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and 
restoration assets (refer Note 
C3-5):
– Tip assets 488 (398) 90 – – (26) 47 (47) – – 488 (425) 63
Total infrastructure, property, 
plant and equipment 251,970 (79,675) 172,295 5,189 765 (3,842) – (47) (7,101) 1,155 253,989 (85,575) 168,414

(1) Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to the acquisition of new assets).

C1-5 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)
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Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are held at fair value. Independent comprehensive valuations are performed at
least every five years, however the carrying amount of assets is assessed by Council at each reporting date to confirm that
it is not materially different from current fair value.

Accounting policy

Water and sewerage network assets are indexed at each reporting period in accordance with the Rates Reference Manual
issued by Department of Industry (DoI) – Water.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the revaluation reserve. To the extent that the increase
reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss relating to that asset class, the increase is first recognised as profit
or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of assets in the same class are first charged against revaluation reserves
directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the class; all other decreases are charged to the Income
Statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Income Statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

When infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are acquired by Council for nil or nominal consideration, the assets are
initially recognised at their fair value at acquisition date.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and equipment Years Other equipment Years
Office equipment 5 to 10 Playground equipment 5 to 15
Office furniture 10 to 20 Benches, seats etc. 10 to 20
Computer equipment 4
Vehicles 5 to 8 Buildings
Heavy plant/road making equipment 5 to 8 Buildings: masonry 50 to 100
Other plant and equipment 5 to 15 Buildings: other 20 to 40

Water and sewer assets Stormwater assets
Dams and reservoirs 80 to 100 Drains 80 to 100
Bores 20 to 40 Culverts 50 to 80
Reticulation pipes: PVC 70 to 80 Flood control structures 80 to 100
Reticulation pipes: other 25 to 75
Pumps and telemetry 15 to 20

Transportation assets Other infrastructure assets
Sealed roads: surface 20 Swimming pools 50
Sealed roads: structure 50 Unealed roads 20
Unsealed roads 20 Other open space/recreational assets 20
Bridge: concrete 100 Other infrastructure 20
Bridge: other 50
Road pavements 60
Kerb, gutter and footpaths 40

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips and median strips.
Land under roads

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with AASB 1051 Land
Under Roads.

Crown reserves under Council’s care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While ownership of the reserves
remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and is responsible for their maintenance and use
in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves are dedicated.

Crown reserves

continued on next page ... 

C1-5 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)
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Improvements on Crown reserves are also recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by Council and revenues
relating to the reserves are recognised within Council’s Income Statement.

Under Section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act 1997 (NSW), “all firefighting equipment purchased or constructed wholly
or from money to the credit of the Fund is to be vested in the council of the area for or on behalf of which the firefighting
equipment has been purchased or constructed”.

Rural Fire Service assets

These Rural Fire Service assets are not recognised as assets of the Council in these financial statements.

C1-5 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)
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as at 30/06/21 as at 30/06/20

$ '000

Gross 
carrying 
amount

Accumulated
depn. and 

impairment

Net
carrying
amount

Gross 
carrying 
amount

Accumulated 
depn. and 

impairment

Net
carrying
amount

Water supply
Land
– Operational land 81 – 81 81 – 81
Buildings 656 656 – – – –
Infrastructure 46,455 21,095 25,360 45,568 20,235 25,333
Total water supply 47,192 21,751 25,441 45,649 20,235 25,414
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Sewerage services
WIP 601 – 601 69 – 69
Infrastructure 6,240 2,388 3,852 6,182 2,270 3,912
Total sewerage services 6,841 2,388 4,453 6,251 2,270 3,981

Domestic waste management
Plant and equipment 874 554 320 874 509 365
Total domestic waste 
management 874 554 320 874 509 365

Total restricted 
infrastructure, property, plant
and equipment 54,907 24,693 30,214 52,774 23,014 29,760

Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Page 41 of 87

Central Darling Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2021

Externally restricted infrastructure, property, plant and equipment



continued on next page ... 

§Note/Subtotal§

Council has leases over vehicles, and IT equipment. Information relating to the leases in place and associated balances and
transactions are provided below.

§TocItem§§Subnote§

Plant & Vehicles

Lease
Number Lessor Asset Class / Type Leased Asset Lease Type Payment

frequency
Annual Amount

$
L0001 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment Landcruiser Prado Ordinary monthly 5,138
L0002 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 1,986
L0003 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 3,080
L0004 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 2,248
L0005 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment RAV 4 Ordinary monthly 7,195
L0006 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 4,860
L0007 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 5,043
L0008 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 5,219
L0009 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 12,012
L0010 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 4,928
L0011 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment PRADO Ordinary monthly 6,658
L0012 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 7,608
L0013 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 4,858
L0014 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 19,166
L0015 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 16,547
L0016 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 20,192
L0017 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 22,989
L0018 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 21,684
L0019 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 10,542
L0020 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 20,971
L0021 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 17,106
L0022 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 20,482
L0023 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 6,786
L0024 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 6,786
L0025 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 6,786
L0026 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 6,786
L0027 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 13,960
L0028 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 17,088
L0029 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment PRADO Ordinary monthly 13,458
L0030 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 10,730
L0031 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 11,576
L0032 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 7,152
L0033 Toyota Fleet Plant and equipment HILUX Ordinary monthly 7,400
Total Annual Payment 349,023

IT Equipment

Leases for IT equipment are generally for low value assets, except for significant items such as photocopiers. The leases
are for between 1 and 3 years with no renewal option, the payments are fixed, however some of the leases include variable
payments based on usage. Total Annual Lease payments is approximately $26,000.

C2 Leasing activities

C2-1 Council as a lessee

Page 42 of 87

Central Darling Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2021

C2 Leasing activities

C2-1 Council as a lessee



continued on next page ... 

§Note/Subtotal§

(a) Right of use assets

$ '000
Plant & 

Equipment Ready to use Total

2021
Opening balance at 1 July 457 – 457

Additions to right-of-use assets 334 – 334
Depreciation charge (358) – (358)
Balance at 30 June 433 – 433

2020
Adoption of AASB 16 at 1 July 2019 – first time lease recognition 242 – 242
Additions to right-of-use assets 465 – 465
Depreciation charge (250) – (250)
Balance at 30 June 457 – 457
 

(b) Lease liabilities
§Subnote§

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Lease liabilities 308 133 137 309
Total lease liabilities 308 133 137 309
 

(c) (i) The maturity analysis
§Subnote§

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table below:

$ '000 < 1 year 1 – 5 years > 5 years Total

Total per 
Statement of 

Financial 
Position

2021
Cash flows 308 133 – 441 441

2020
Cash flows 261 185 – 446 446
 

§Subnote§

(ii) Lease liabilities relating to restricted assets

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Total lease liabilities relating to unrestricted
assets 308 133 137 309

Total lease liabilities 308 133 137 309

C2-1 Council as a lessee (continued)
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(d) Income Statement

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to leases where Council is a lessee are shown below:

$ '000 2021 2020

Interest on lease liabilities 9 7
Depreciation of right of use assets 358 250
Expenses relating to short-term leases 7 30

374 287
 

(e) Statement of Cash Flows
§Subnote§

Total cash outflow for leases 349 250
349 250

 
§Subnote§

Accounting policy

At inception of a contract, Council assesses whether a lease exists – i.e. does the contract convey the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration?

Council has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components for any class of asset and has accounted
for payments as a single component.

At the lease commencement, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the lease term. The
lease term includes extension periods where Council believes it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises: the lease liability, initial
direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis and assessed for impairment in accordance with the
impairment of asset accounting policy.

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement of the
lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be readily determined then the Council’s
incremental borrowing rate for a similar term with similar security is used.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The
lease liability is re-measured when there is a lease modification, or change in estimate of the lease term or index upon which
the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI).

Where the lease liability is re-measured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the re-measurement.

Exceptions to lease accounting
Council has applied the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases with a term of less than or equal
to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets. Council recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases at significantly below market value / Concessionary leases
Council has elected to measure the right of use asset arising from the concessionary leases at cost which is based on the
associated lease liability at initial recognition.

C2-1 Council as a lessee (continued)
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Operating leases

Council leases 1 vehicle only at a weekly amount of $35 and also receives rental for staff accommodtion.

$ '000 2021 2020

(i) Assets held as investment property
The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to operating leases where Council is a lessor are shown below

(ii) Assets held as property, plant and equipment

Lease income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on an index or rate) 33 103
Total income relating to operating leases for Council assets 33 103
 

§Subnote§

Maturity analysis of future lease income receivable showing the undiscounted lease
payments to be received after reporting date for operating leases:

< 1 year 2 2
Total undiscounted lease payments to be received 2 2
 

When Council is a lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease at inception date, based on whether
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have been transferred to the lessee. If the risks
and rewards have been transferred then the lease is classified as a finance lease, otherwise it is an operating lease.

§Subnote§

Accounting policy

When Council has a sub-lease over an asset and is the intermediate lessor then the head lease and sub-lease are accounted
for separately. The classification of the sub-lease is based on the right-of-use asset which arises from the head lease rather
than the useful life of the underlying asset.

If the lease contains lease and non-lease components, the non-lease components are accounted for in accordance with AASB
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term for an operating lease and as finance income
using amortised cost basis for finance leases.

C2-2 Council as a lessor
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2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Payables
Goods and services – operating expenditure 1,454 – 926 –
Goods and services – capital expenditure 97 – – –
Accrued expenses:
– Salaries and wages 138 – 207 –
– Other expenditure accruals 5 – – –
Security bonds, deposits and retentions 2 – 2 –
Total payables 1,696 – 1,135 –

§TocItem§§Subnote§

Income received in advance
Payments received in advance 109 – 86 –
Total income received in advance 109 – 86 –

Total payables 1,805 – 1,221 –
 

§Subnote§

Payables relating to restricted assets

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Total payables relating to unrestricted 
assets 1,805 – 1,221 –

Total payables 1,805 – 1,221 –
 
§Subnote§

Accounting policy
Council measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabilities are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Payables
Payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to Council prior to the end of financial year that are unpaid. 
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

C3 Liabilities of Council

C3-1 Payables
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§Note/Subtotal§

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Notes Current Non-current Current Non-current

Grants and contributions received in 
advance:
Unexpended capital grants (to 
construct Council controlled assets) (i) 4,327 – 60 –
Total grants received in 
advance 4,327 – 60 –

Total contract liabilities 4,327 – 60 –

§TocItem§§Subnote§

Notes
Council has received funding for the upgrade of a remote aerodrome at Tilpa, The funds received are under an enforceable
contract which requires Council to undertake the upgrade works in accordance with the grant approval and the asset is under
Council's control and recognised as part of Council's IPPE assets disclosed in Note 10a. The revenue is recognised over time
as the upgrade works are completed, and the contract liability reflects the funds received which cannot yet be recognised as
revenue. The revenue is expected to be recognised in the next 12 months.
 

§Subnote§

Contract liabilities relating to restricted assets

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Externally restricted assets
Sewer 116 – – –
Unspent grants held as contract liabilities (excl.
Water & Sewer) 4,211 – 60 –
Contract liabilities relating to externally 
restricted assets 4,327 – 60 –

Total contract liabilities relating to 
restricted assets 4,327 – 60 –

Total contract liabilities 4,327 – 60 –
 

The contract liabilities have arisen on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058. Previously income received in advance was
recognised for reciprocal contracts. The increase in a contract liability is primarily due to grants in the scope of AASB 1058 and
capital grants received by Council to acquire or construct assets which will be under Council’s control. Previously, revenue
was recognised on receipt of the funds.

§Subnote§

Significant changes in contract liabilities

Accounting policy
Contract liabilities are recorded when consideration is received from a customer / fund provider prior to Council transferring 
a good or service to the customer, Council presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a contract liability.

C3-2 Contract Liabilities
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continued on next page ... 

§Note/Subtotal§

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Loans – secured   1 150 – 165 141
Total borrowings 150 – 165 141

§TocItem§§Subnote§

(1) Loans are secured over the general rating income of Council.
Disclosures on liability interest rate risk exposures, fair value disclosures and security can be found in Note E1-1.

C3-3 Borrowings
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§Note/Subtotal§

Borrowings relating to restricted assets

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Total borrowings relating to 
unrestricted assets 150 – 165 141

Total borrowings 150 – 165 141
 
§Subnote§

Current borrowings not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve months

The following borrowings, even though classified as current, are not expected to be settled in the next 12 months.
 

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
§Subnote§

2020  Non-cash movements 2021

$ '000
Opening
Balance Cash flows Acquisition

Fair value 
changes

Acquisition 
due to change 
in accounting 

policy
Other non-cash

movement
Closing 
balance

Loans – secured 306 (156) – – – – 150
Lease liability (Note C2-1b) 446 (339) 334 – – – 441
Total liabilities from financing 
activities 752 (495) 334 – – – 591
 

2019  Non-cash movements 2020

$ '000
Opening
Balance Cash flows Acquisition

Fair value 
changes

Acquisition due 
to change in 

accounting 
policy

Other non-cash 
movement Closing balance

Loans – secured 455 (149) – – – – 306
Lease liability (Note C2-1b) 484 (503) 465 – – – 446
Total liabilities from financing 
activities 939 (652) 465 – – – 752

§Subnote§

 

(b) Financing arrangements
§Subnote§

$ '000 2021 2020

Total facilities
Credit cards/purchase cards 45 45
Total financing arrangements 45 45

Drawn facilities
– Credit cards/purchase cards 8 8
Total drawn financing arrangements 8 8

Undrawn facilities
– Credit cards/purchase cards 37 37
Total undrawn financing arrangements 37 37

Additional financing arrangements information

Breaches and defaults
During the current and prior year, there were no defaults or breaches on any of the loans.

continued on next page ... 

C3-3 Borrowings (continued)
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Security over loans
Loans are secured over the general rating income of Council. Leased liabilities are
secured by the underlying leased assets.
 

Council measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

§Subnote§

Accounting policy

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Position when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in other income or borrowing costs.

C3-3 Borrowings (continued)
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continued on next page ... 

§Note/Subtotal§

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Annual leave 545 – 560 –
Long service leave 519 27 523 27
Total employee benefit provisions 1,064 27 1,083 27

§TocItem§§Subnote§

 

§Subnote§

Current employee benefit provisions not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve months

$ '000 2021 2020

The following provisions, even though classified as current, are not expected to be settled 
in the next 12 months.
Provisions – employees benefits 614 798

614 798

C3-4 Employee benefit provisions
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§Note/Subtotal§

Description of and movements in provisions

ELE provisions

$ '000 Annual leave
Long service

leave Total

2021
At beginning of year 560 550 1,110
Additional provisions 358 100 458
Amounts used (payments) (373) (104) (477)
Total ELE provisions at end of year 545 546 1,091

2020
At beginning of year 541 472 1,013
Additional provisions 19 – 19
Amounts used (payments) – (445) (445)
Other – 523 523
Total ELE provisions at end of year 560 550 1,110

§Total§

Employee benefit provisions are presented as current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if Council does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur and therefore all annual leave and vested long service leave (or that which vests within 12
months) is presented as current.

§Subnote§

Accounting policy

Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries (including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be
wholly settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service) are recognised
in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liability for annual leave and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The liability for long-service leave and annual leave that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

On-costs
The employee benefit provisions include the aggregate on-cost liabilities that will arise when payment of current employee
benefits is made in future periods.

These amounts include superannuation, payroll tax and workers compensation expenses which will be payable upon the future
payment of certain leave liabilities which employees are entitled to at the reporting period.

C3-4 Employee benefit provisions (continued)
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§Note/Subtotal§

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-Current Current Non-Current

Asset remediation/restoration:
Asset remediation/restoration (future works) – 717 – 715
Sub-total – asset remediation/restoration – 717 – 715

Total provisions – 717 – 715

§TocItem§§Subnote§

 

Total provisions relating to unrestricted
assets – 717 – 715

Total provisions – 717 – 715

§Subnote§

 
§Subnote§

Current provisions not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve months

The following provisions, even though classified as current, are not expected to be settled in the next 12 months: Nil.
 
§Subnote§

Description of and movements in provisions

Other provisions

$ '000
Asset 

remediation

Net
carrying
amount

2021
At beginning of year 715 715

§Total§

Changes to provision:
Re-assessment of provision 2 2
Total other provisions at end of year 717 717

2020
At beginning of year 762 762
Re-assessment of provision (47) (47)
Total other provisions at end of year 715 715

Asset remediation

§Subnote§

Nature and purpose of provisions

Council has a legal/public obligation to make, restore, rehabilitate and reinstate the council's landfills.

Provisions are recognised when Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Accounting policy

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a borrowing cost.

Close-down and restoration costs include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, and the removal of residual materials
and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close-down and restoration costs are provided for in the accounting period
when the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during the development or during the
operation phase, based on the net present value of estimated future costs. Provisions for close-down and restoration costs do
not include any additional obligations which are expected to arise from future disturbance.

Asset remediation – tips and quarries

continued on next page ... 
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The cost estimates are calculated annually during the life of the operation to reflect known developments, e.g. updated cost
estimates and revisions to the estimated lives of operations, and are subject to formal review at regular intervals.

The ultimate cost of environmental remediation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response to many factors, including
changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new restoration techniques, or experience at other locations.
The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for example in response to changes in quarry reserves or production
rates. As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the provision for close down and restoration and environmental
clean-up, which would affect future financial results.

Other movements in the provisions for close-down and restoration costs, including those resulting from new disturbance,
updated cost estimates, changes to the estimated lives of operations, and revisions to discount rates, are capitalised within
infrastructure, property, plant and equipment. These costs are then depreciated over the lives of the assets to which they relate.

C3-5 Provisions (continued)
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§Note/Subtotal§

The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve is used to record increments / decrements of non-current
asset values due to their revaluation.

§TocItem§§Subnote§

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve

C4 Reserves

C4-1 Nature and purpose of reserves
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§Note/Subtotal§
§TocItem§§TocItem§
§Subnote§

General fund refers to all Council activities other than water and sewer. All amounts disclosed in this note are gross i.e. 
inclusive of internal charges and recoveries made between the funds. Assets and liabilities shown in the water and sewer 
columns are restricted for use for these activities.
 

D1-1 Income Statement by fund
§Subnote§

 General Water Sewer
$ '000 2021 2021 2021

Income from continuing operations
Rates and annual charges 1,473 653 270
User charges and fees 9,174 457 1
Interest and investment revenue 25 23 3
Other revenues 582 32 207
Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 13,677 – –
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 6,721 – 300
Net gains from disposal of assets 63 – –
Other income 33 – –
Total income from continuing operations 31,748 1,165 781

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 5,646 – –
Materials and services 15,735 659 112
Borrowing costs 29 – –
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets 3,534 668 97
Other expenses 406 593 112
Total expenses from continuing operations 25,350 1,920 321

Operating result from continuing operations 6,398 (755) 460

Net operating result for the year 6,398 (755) 460

Net operating result attributable to each council fund 6,398 (755) 460

Net operating result for the year before grants and 
contributions provided for capital purposes (323) (755) 160

D Council structure

D1 Results by fund
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§Note/Subtotal§

General Water Sewer
$ '000 2021 2021 2021

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,774 1,213 740
Receivables 6,467 690 111
Inventories 257 – –
Total current assets 13,498 1,903 851

Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 144,826 25,441 4,453
Investments accounted for using the equity method 1,140 – –
Right of use assets 433 – –
Total non-current assets 146,399 25,441 4,453

TOTAL ASSETS 159,897 27,344 5,304

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 1,696 – –
Income received in advance 109 – –
Contract liabilities 4,211 – 116
Lease liabilities 308 – –
Borrowings 150 – –
Employee benefit provision 1,064 – –
Total current liabilities 7,538 – 116

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 133 – –
Employee benefit provision 27 – –
Provisions 717 – –
Total non-current liabilities 877 – –

TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,415 – 116

Net assets 151,482 27,344 5,188

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 114,508 10,251 2,249
Revaluation reserves 36,974 17,093 2,939
Council equity interest 151,482 27,344 5,188

Total equity 151,482 27,344 5,188

D1-2 Statement of Financial Position by fund
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§Note/Subtotal§

Council’s share of net assets
$ '000 2021 2020

Council’s share of net assets

§TocItem§§Subnote§

Net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method 
– assets
Joint Arrangement 1,140 1,359
Total net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the 
equity method – assets 1,140 1,359

Total Council’s share of net assets 1,140 1,359
 

D2-1 Interests in joint arrangements
§Subnote§

Net carrying amounts – Council’s share
§Total§

Interest in
ownership

$ '000
Nature of 
relationship

Place of 
business 2021 2020 2021 2020

Far West Joint Organisation   25.0% 25.0% 1,140 1,359
Total carrying amounts – 
material joint ventures 1,140 1,359
 
§Total§

Material joint ventures
The following information is provided for joint ventures that are individually material to the Council. Included are the total 
amounts as per the joint venture financial statements, adjusted for fair-value adjustments at acquisition date and differences 
in accounting policies, rather than the Council’s share.
 

Summarised financial information for joint ventures
§Total§

Far West Joint Organisation
$ '000 2021 2020

Statement of financial position
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,511 5,371
Other current assets 110 50
Non-current assets – 36
Current liabilities
Other current liabilities 60 19
Net assets 4,561 5,438

Statement of comprehensive income
Income (860) (406)
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations (860) (406)

Profit/(loss) for the period (860) (406)

Total comprehensive income (860) (406)

 
Share of income – Council (%) 25.0% 25.0%
Profit/(loss) – Council ($) (215) (102)
Total comprehensive income – Council ($) (215) (102)

Summarised Statement of cash flows
Cash flows from operating activities (860) (406)
Cash flows from investing activities – (592)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (860) (998)

continued on next page ... 
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Far West Joint Organisation
$ '000 2021 2020

Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Opening net assets (1 July) 5,438 5,844
Profit/(loss) for the period (860) (406)
Closing net assets 4,578 5,438

Council’s share of net assets (%) 25.0% 25.0%
Council’s share of net assets ($) 1,140 1,359
 

The council has determined that it has only joint ventures.

§Total§

Accounting policy

Joint ventures:

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in accordance with AASB128 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures.

Under this method, the investment is initially recognised as a cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the Council’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture after the date of
acquisition.

If the Council’s share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the Council discontinues
recognising its share of further losses.

The Council’s share in the joint venture’s gains or losses arising from transactions between itself and its joint venture are
eliminated.

Adjustments are made to the joint venture’s accounting policies where they are different from those of the Council for the
purposes of the consolidated financial statements.

D2-1 Interests in joint arrangements (continued)
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continued on next page ... 

§Note/Subtotal§

Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit risk, (3) liquidity risk and (4) interest
rate risk.

§TocItem§§TocItem§
§Subnote§

The Council’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign currency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by Council’s finance section under policies approved by the Council.

A comparison by category of the carrying amounts and fair values of Council’s financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the financial statements is presented below.

Carrying value Carrying value Fair value Fair value
$ '000 2021 2020 2021 2020

Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 8,727 7,775 8,727 7,775
Receivables 7,268 3,061 7,268 3,061
Total financial assets 15,995 10,836 15,995 10,836

Financial liabilities
Payables 1,696 1,135 1,696 1,135
Loans/advances 150 306 150 306
Total financial liabilities 1,846 1,441 1,846 1,441

Council’s objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of liquidity and
preserving capital.

Council's finance area manages the cash and Investments portfolio with the assistance of independent advisors.

Council has an investment policy which complies with the Local Government Act 1993 and Minister’s investment order 625.
This policy is regularly reviewed by Council and it’s staff and an investment report is tabled before Council on a monthly basis
setting out the portfolio breakup and its performance as required by Local Government regulations.

The risks associated with the instruments held are:

• Price risk – the risk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether
there changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial instruments or their issuers or are caused by factors
affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

• Interest rate risk – the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns and income.

• Liquidity risk – the risk that Council will not be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

• Credit risk – the risk that the investment counterparty will not complete their obligations particular to a financial
instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council – be it of a capital or income nature.

Council manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing investments with high
credit ratings or capital guarantees.

Council also seeks advice from independent advisers before placing any funds in cash equivalents and investments.

E Risks and accounting uncertainties

E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held
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§Note/Subtotal§

(a) Market risk – interest rate and price risk

$ '000 2021 2020

The impact on result for the year and equity of a reasonably possible movement in the price
of investments held and interest rates is shown below. The reasonably possible movements
were determined based on historical movements and economic conditions in place at the 
reporting date.
Impact of a 1% movement in interest rates
– Equity / Income Statement 90 78
Impact of a 10% movement in price of investments
– Equity / Income Statement – –
 

(b) Credit risk
§Subnote§

Council’s major receivables comprise (i) rates and annual charges and (ii) user charges and fees. Council manages the credit
risk associated with these receivables by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent debt recovery procedures.
Council also encourages ratepayers to pay their rates by the due date through incentives.

Pre-amble

The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers, specific industry
sectors and/or regions. The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and
monitored for acceptable collection performance.

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most non-rate debtors.
There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

Credit risk profile
§Total§

Receivables – rates and annual charges
Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to recover these debts as a secured charge 
over the land; that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest on overdue rates and 
annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages payment.

$ '000
Not yet

overdue
< 1 year
overdue

1 - 2 years 
overdue

2 - 5 years 
overdue

> 5 years 
overdue Total

2021
Gross carrying amount – 330 417 – – 747

2020
Gross carrying amount – 913 392 – – 1,305
 

Council applies the simplified approach for non-rates and annual charges debtors and contract assets to provide for expected
credit losses, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision at inception. To measure the expected credit losses,
non-rates and annual charges debtors and contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

§Total§

Receivables - non-rates and annual charges and contract assets

The loss allowance provision is determined as follows. The expected credit losses incorporate forward-looking information.

$ '000
Not yet

overdue
0 - 30 days 

overdue
31 - 60 days 

overdue
61 - 90 days 

overdue
> 91 days 

overdue Total

2021
Gross carrying amount 3,160 715 122 211 3,196 7,404
Expected loss rate (%) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 7.28% 3.14%
ECL provision – – – – 233 233

continued on next page ... 
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$ '000
Not yet

overdue
0 - 30 days 

overdue
31 - 60 days 

overdue
61 - 90 days 

overdue
> 91 days 

overdue Total

2020
Gross carrying amount 589 321 – – 2,176 3,086
Expected loss rate (%) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 27.11% 19.12%
ECL provision – – – – 590 590
 

(c) Liquidity risk
§Subnote§

Payables, lease liabilities and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk; that is, the risk that insufficient funds may be on
hand to meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels, and by maintaining an adequate cash
buffer. Payment terms can be extended, and overdraft facilities drawn upon in extenuating circumstances.

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk: the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect funding costs.
Council manages this risk through diversification of borrowing types, maturities and interest rate structures.

The finance team regularly reviews interest rate movements to determine if it would be advantageous to refinance or
renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio.

The timing of cash flows presented in the table below to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement
dates. The timing of expected outflows is not expected to be materially different from contracted cashflows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the undiscounted contracted cash flows for non-lease liabilities (refer to Note C2-1(b)
for lease liabilities) and therefore the balances in the table may not equal the balances in the Statement of Financial Position
due to the effect of discounting.

payable in:

$ '000

Weighted
average
interest 

rate

Subject
to no

maturity ≤ 1 Year 1 - 5 
Years > 5 Years Total cash

outflows

Actual 
carrying 

values

2021
Trade/other payables 0.00% 2 1,694 – – 1,696 1,696
Loans and advances 2.77% – 150 – – 150 150
Total financial liabilities 2 1,844 – – 1,846 1,846

2020
Trade/other payables 0.00% 2 1,133 – – 1,135 1,135
Loans and advances 2.76% – 165 141 – 306 306
Total financial liabilities 2 1,298 141 – 1,441 1,441

E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held (continued)
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continued on next page ... 

§Note/Subtotal§
§TocItem§§Subnote§

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:

– Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
– Investment property
– Financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various accounting standards for either recognition
and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a ‘level’ in the
fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
 

Fair value measurement hierarchy

Date of latest 
valuation

Level 2 Significant 
observable inputs

Level 3 Significant 
unobservable 

inputs Total
$ '000 Notes 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Recurring fair value measurements

§Subnote§

Infrastructure, property, 
plant and equipment

C1-5

Plant and equipment 30/06/19 2,018 1,628 – – 2,018 1,628
Furniture and fittings 30/06/20 16 17 – – 16 17
Operational land 30/06/19 1,207 1,126 – – 1,207 1,126
Community and crown land 30/06/18 – – 523 523 523 523
Buildings 30/06/18 12,265 12,370 – – 12,265 12,370
Other structures 30/06/19 – – 3,664 2,816 3,664 2,816
Roads, bridges and footpaths 30/06/20 – – 118,187 117,359 118,187 117,359
Stormwater drainage 30/06/19 – – 669 694 669 694
Water supply network 30/06/17 – – 25,360 25,334 25,360 25,334
Sewerage network 30/06/17 – – 3,852 3,912 3,852 3,912
Total infrastructure, 
property, plant and 
equipment 15,506 15,141 152,255 150,638 167,761 165,779

E2-1 Fair value measurement
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Valuation techniques

Where Council is unable to derive fair valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets (ie. level 1 inputs) Council
instead utilises a spread of both observable inputs (level 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs (level 3 inputs).

The fair valuation techniques Council has employed while utilising level 2 and level 3 inputs are as follows:

Stormwater drainage

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE)

The Stormwater Drainage asset class consists of Council’s pits and Culverts. AssetVal Pty Ltd completed the valuation of
these assets in 2019. The valuation methodology adopted was based on current replacement cost of the asset.

Replacement costs (unit rates) and useful lives for Stormwater Drainage assets were determined through professional
judgement on behalf of AssetVal Pty Ltd, which incorporated standard unit rates applied to the dimensions of the asset and
considered environmental factors based on asset location. Other significant inputs considered in the valuation of these assets
are asset condition, remaining useful life, and pattern of consumption.

This asset class is categorised as Level 3 as some of the above-mentioned inputs used in the valuation of these assets require
significant professional judgement and are therefore unobservable. Valuation techniques remained the same for this reporting
period.

Other structures

Council’s other structure assets comprise of fences, flagpoles, monuments and the like. AssetVal Pty Ltd completed the
valuation of these assets in 2019.

Replacement costs (unit rate) and useful lives of Council's other structure assets were determined through professional
judgement on behalf of AssetVal Pty Ltd, which incorporated standard unit rates applied to the dimensions of the asset and
considered environmental factors based on the assets location. Other significant inputs considered in the valuation of these
assets are asset condition, remaining useful life and pattern of consumption.

This asset class is categorised as Level 3 as some of the above-mentioned inputs used in the valuation of these assets require
significant professional judgement and are therefore unobservable. Valuation techniques remained the same for this reporting
period.

Buildings

Council engaged AssetVal Pty Ltd to value all buildings and shelters in 2018. The valuation methodology adopted was based
on current replacement cost of the asset.

The valuation aspects are generally, but not limited to the location, size, condition, style and utility of the asset. Replacement
cost, asset condition, remaining useful life and building components are some of the inputs used in fair value determination.
Since most of these inputs require judgement and are unobservable, the asset class has been classified as Level 3. Valuation
techniques remained the same for this reporting period.

Roads, bridges, footpaths and bulk earthworks

Council’s roads & Bridges are componentised into the pavement, surface and formation and further separated into segments
for inspection and valuation.

The valuation of assets was completed by APV Valuers in June 2020.

The current replacement cost approach was adopted to value Councils assets. The replacement costs (based on unit rates),
useful lives and conditions were determined by technical information provided by Council's asset planners and professional
judgement on behalf of APV.

Some of the other significant inputs considered in the valuation of these assets are remaining useful life, pattern of consumption,
dimensions, and components.

This asset class is categorised as Level 3 as some of the above-mentioned inputs used in the valuation of these assets require
significant professional judgement and are therefore unobservable. Valuation techniques remained the same for this reporting
period.

E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Page 64 of 87

Central Darling Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2021

E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)



continued on next page ... 

Tip remediation

Council operates a landfilling operation as well as a range of waste services, including recycled and reclaimed products. It has
been recognised that there will be significant costs associated with the closure and post closure management of the landfill site.

Closure of the landfill will involve a wide range of activities including preparation of a Landfill Closure and Management Plan,
final capping of the landfill waste and site re-vegetation, decommissioning and removing infrastructure and equipment that will
not be required post-closure, and fencing sensitive infrastructure.

The key unobservable inputs are the discount rate, cost escalation rate, actual timing of costs and future environmental
management requirements. There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

Water supply network

This asset category includes Dams & Weirs, Mains, Reservoirs and treatment plants.

The valuation of assets was completed by Brearly & Hansen Valuers in June 2017.

The current replacement cost approach was adopted to value Councils assets. The replacement costs (based on unit rates),
useful lives and conditions were determined by technical information provided by Council's asset planners asset planners and
professional judgement on behalf of APV.

Some of the other significant inputs considered in the valuation of these assets are remaining useful life, pattern of consumption,
dimensions, and components. Valuation techniques remained the same for this reporting period.

Sewerage network

This asset category includes Mains, Pumping stations and sewerage ponds.

The valuation of assets was completed by Brearly & Hansen Valuers in June 2017.

The current replacement cost approach was adopted to value Councils assets. The replacement costs (based on unit rates),
useful lives and conditions were determined by technical information provided by Council's asset planners and professional
judgement on behalf of APV.

Some of the other significant inputs considered in the valuation of these assets are remaining useful life, pattern of consumption,
dimensions, and components. Valuation techniques remained the same for this reporting period.

Community land

Assets within the “Community Land” class are Council owned land, and Care Control Management land [Crown] of which
Council derives current and future economic benefits arising from the use of the land asset.

Council’s community land is valued on the Unimproved Capital Value (UCV), provided by the Valuer General 01/07/2019.

Currently all Council assets in this asset class are based on UCV, however, should Council have an asset in future for which
an UCV is not provided, the replacement cost will be used. Replacement cost will be based on average unit rates for similar
properties, land use, dimensions, land size and shape, which are not considered observable based on market evidence,
therefore, placing the whole asset class in Level 3. Valuation techniques remained the same for this reporting period.

Operational land

Council’s operational land includes all of Council's land classified as operational land under Local Government Act
1993. Council’s community land is valued on the Unimproved Capital Value (UCV), provided by the Valuer General 01/07/2019.

Currently all Council assets in this asset class are based on a modelled market based valuation process, however, should
Council have an asset in future for which this valuation process is not available, the replacement cost will be used. Replacement
cost will be based on average unit rates for similar properties, land use, dimensions, land size and shape, which are not
considered observable based on market evidence, therefore, placing the whole asset class in Level 3. Valuation techniques
remained the same for this reporting period.

E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)
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Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

Significant unobservable valuation inputs used (for level 3 asset classes) and their relationship to fair value.
§Total§

The following table summarises the quantitative information relating to the significant unobservable inputs used in deriving 
the various level 3 asset class fair values.

Valuation technique/s Unobservable inputs

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Other structures Current replacement cost Replacement cost

Asset condition rating
Remaining useful life

Roads, bridges, footpaths and bulk 
earthworks

Current replacement cost Replacement cost
Asset condition rating
Remaining useful life

Stormwater drainage Current replacement cost Replacement cost
Asset condition rating
Remaining useful life

Water supply network Current replacement cost Replacement cost
Asset condition rating
Remaining useful life

Sewerage network Current replacement cost Replacement cost
Asset condition rating
Remaining useful life

Community Land Current replacement cost Replacement cost
Asset condition rating

E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)
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A reconciliation of the movements in recurring fair value measurements allocated to Level 3 of the hierarchy is 
provided below:

§Total§

Crown / Community 
land Other structures

Roads, bridges, 
footpaths Stormwater drainage

$ '000 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Opening balance 523 523 2,816 2,165 117,359 122,501 694 719
Total gains or losses for 
the period
Other movements
Purchases (GBV) – – 1,110 – 2,686 – – –
Depreciation and impairment – – (262) (231) (1,858) (1,861) (25) (25)
Other movement (WIP 
transfers) – – – 882 – 3,820 – –
Other movement (Asset 
revaluation) – – – – – (7,101) – –
Closing balance 523 523 3,664 2,816 118,187 117,359 669 694
 

Water supply network Sewerage network Total
$ '000 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Opening balance 25,333 25,541 3,912 3,939 150,637 155,388
Transfers from/(to) another 
asset class (81) – – – (81) –
Purchases (GBV) 551 – 14 – 4,361 –
Depreciation and impairment (668) (636) (97) (85) (2,910) (2,838)
Other movement (WIP 
transfers) – 428 – – – 5,130
Other movement (Asset 
revaluation) 225 – 23 58 248 (7,043)
Closing balance 25,360 25,333 3,852 3,912 152,255 150,637

§Total§

§Subnote§

Highest and best use

All of Council’s non-financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.

E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)
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The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but their knowledge 
and disclosure is considered relevant to the users of Council’s financial report.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

1. Guarantees

Council is party to an Industry Defined Benefit Plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, named The Local
Government Superannuation Scheme – Pool B (the Scheme) which is a defined benefit plan that has been deemed to be a
‘multi-employer fund’ for purposes of AASB119 Employee Benefits for the following reasons:

(i) Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans

– Assets are not segregated within the sub-group according to the employees of each sponsoring employer.

– The contribution rates have been the same for all sponsoring employers. That is, contribution rates have not varied for each
sponsoring employer according to the experience relating to the employees of that sponsoring employer.

– Benefits for employees of all sponsoring employers are determined according to the same formulae and without regard to
the sponsoring employer.

– The same actuarial assumptions are currently used in respect of the employees of each sponsoring employer.

Given the factors above, each sponsoring employer is exposed to the actuarial risks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers, and hence shares in the associated gains and losses (to the extent that they are
not borne by members).

Description of the funding arrangements.

Pooled Employers are required to pay future service employer contributions and past service employer contributions to the
Fund.

The future service employer contributions were determined using the new entrant rate method under which a contribution rate
sufficient to fund the total benefits over the working life-time of a typical new entrant is calculated. The current future service
employer contribution rates are::

Division B 1.9 times member contributions for non-180 Point Members;
Nil for 180 Point Members*

Division C 2.5% salaries

Division D 1.64 times member contributions

* For 180 Point Members, Employers are required to contribute 7% of salaries to these members’ accumulation accounts,
which are paid in addition to members’ defined benefits.

The past service contribution for each Pooled Employer is a share of the total past service contributions of $40.0 million for
1 July 2019 to 30 June 2021, apportioned according to each employer’s share of the accrued liabilities as at 30 June 2019.
These past service contributions are used to maintain the adequacy of the funding position for the accrued liabilities.

The adequacy of contributions is assessed at each triennial actuarial investigation and monitored annually between triennials.

Description of the extent to which Council can be liable to the plan for other Council’s obligations under the terms and conditions
of the multi-employer plan

As stated above, each sponsoring employer (Council) is exposed to the actuarial risks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers and hence shares in the associated gains and losses.

However, there is no relief under the Fund's trust deed for employers to walk away from their defined benefit obligations.
Under limited circumstances, an employer may withdraw from the plan when there are no active members, on full payment
of outstanding additional contributions. There is no provision for allocation of any surplus which may be present at the date
of withdrawal of the Council.

There are no specific provisions under the Fund's trust deed dealing with deficits or surplus on wind-up.

The amount of Council employer contributions to the defined benefit section of the Local Government Superannuation Scheme
and recognised as an expense for the year ending 30 June 2021 was $22,672.30. The last valuation of the Scheme was
performed by Richard Boyfield FIAA on 30 June 2019, and covers the period ended 30 June 2020.

continued on next page ... 
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The amount of additional contributions included in the total employer contribution advised above is $22,630.86. Council’s
expected contribution to the plan for the next annual reporting period is $27,010.32.

The estimated employer reserves financial position for the Pooled Employers at 30 June 2021 is:

Employer reserves only * $millions Asset Coverage
Assets 2,620.5
Past Service Liabilities 2,445.6 107.2%
Vested Benefits 2,468.7 106.2%

* excluding member accounts and reserves in both assets and liabilities.

Council’s share of that deficiency cannot be accurately calculated as the Scheme is a mutual arrangement where assets and
liabilities are pooled together for all member councils. For this reason, no liability for the deficiency has been recognised in
Council’s accounts. Council has a possible obligation that may arise should the Scheme require immediate payment to correct
the deficiency.

The key economic long term assumptions used to calculate the present value of accrued benefits are:

Investment return 5.75% per annum
Salary inflation * 3.5% per annum
Increase in CPI 2.5% per annum

* Plus promotional increases

The contribution requirements may vary from the current rates if the overall sub-group experience is not in line with the actuarial
assumptions in determining the funding program; however, any adjustment to the funding program would be the same for all
sponsoring employers in the Pooled Employers group.

Council is a member of Statewide Mutual, a mutual pool scheme providing liability insurance to local government.

(ii) Statewide Limited

Membership includes the potential to share in either the net assets or liabilities of the fund depending on its past performance.
Council’s share of the net assets or liabilities reflects Council’s contributions to the pool and the result of insurance claims
within each of the fund years.

The future realisation and finalisation of claims incurred but not reported to 30/6 this year may result in future liabilities or
benefits as a result of past events that Council will be required to fund or share in respectively.

Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited and holds a partly paid share in the entity.

(iii) StateCover Limited

StateCover is a company providing workers compensation insurance cover to the NSW local government industry and
specifically Council.

Council has a contingent liability to contribute further equity in the event of the erosion of the company’s capital base as a
result of the company’s past performance and/or claims experience or as a result of any increased prudential requirements
from APRA.

These future equity contributions would be required to maintain the company’s minimum level of net assets in accordance
with its licence requirements.

Council has provided no other guarantees other than those listed above.

(iv) Other guarantees

2. Other liabilities

The Council is involved from time to time in various claims incidental to the ordinary course of business including claims for
damages relating to its services.

(i) Third party claims

continued on next page ... 
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Council believes that it is appropriately covered for all claims through its insurance coverage and does not expect any material
liabilities to eventuate.

Council has classified a number of privately owned land parcels as local open space or bushland.

(ii) Potential land acquisitions due to planning restrictions imposed by Council

As a result, where notified in writing by the various owners, Council will be required to purchase these land parcels.

At reporting date, reliable estimates as to the value of any potential liability (and subsequent land asset) from such potential
acquisitions has not been possible.

As permitted under AASB 1051, Council has elected not to bring to account land under roads that it owned or controlled up
to and including 30/6/08.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED

(i) Land under roads

Fines and penalty income, the result of Council issuing infringement notices is followed up and collected by the Infringement
Processing Bureau.

(ii) Infringement notices/fines

Council’s revenue recognition policy for such income is to account for it as revenue on receipt.

Accordingly, at year end, there is a potential asset due to Council representing issued but unpaid infringement notices.

Due to the limited information available on the status, value and duration of outstanding notices, Council is unable to determine
the value of outstanding income.

E3-1 Contingencies (continued)
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Key management personnel (KMP) of the council are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the council, directly or 
indirectly.

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:

$ '000 2021 2020

Compensation:
Short-term benefits 469 600
Post-employment benefits 45 55
Other long-term benefits 5 9
Total 519 664

F People and relationships

F1 Related party disclosures

F1-1 Key management personnel (KMP)
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$ '000 2021 2020

The aggregate amount of Administrator fees and associated expenses included in 
materials and services expenses in the Income Statement are:

Administrator fee 200 –
Other Administrator expenses 27 –
Total 227 –

§TocItem§§TocItem§
§Subnote§

F1-2 Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses
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$ '000 2021 2020

During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by the auditor 
of Council, related practices and non-related audit firms

§TocItem§§Subnote§

Auditors of the Council - NSW Auditor-General:

(i) Audit and other assurance services
Audit and review of financial statements 55 63
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 55 63

Total Auditor-General remuneration 55 63

Non NSW Auditor-General audit firms

(i) Audit and other assurance services
Audit and review of financial statements 88 –
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 88 –

Total remuneration of non NSW Auditor-General audit firms 88 –

Total audit fees 143 63

F2 Other relationships

F2-1 Audit fees
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Reconciliation of net operating result to cash provided from operating activities

$ '000 2021 2020

Net operating result from Income Statement 6,103 6,093
Adjust for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation 4,299 4,092
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of assets (63) –
Share of net (profits)/losses of associates/joint ventures using the equity method 219 102

+/– Movement in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:
Decrease/(increase) in receivables (3,760) (719)
Increase/(decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables (447) 600
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 198 62
Increase/(decrease) in payables 528 –
Increase/(decrease) in other accrued expenses payable (64) 566
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 23 (4)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities 4,267 60
Increase/(decrease) in provision for employee benefits (19) 97
Increase/(decrease) in other provisions 2 (47)
Net cash provided from/(used in) operating activities    
from the Statement of Cash Flows 11,286 10,902

G Other matters

G1-1 Statement of Cash Flows information
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Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)

Council made no material forward commitments during the year, other than completion of major road improvements to 
Pooncarie Road which are largely funded by capital grants.

G2-1 Commitments
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 Amounts Indicator Indicator Benchmark
$ '000 2021 2021 2020  

1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding capital grants 
and contributions less operating expenses   1, 2 (762)
Total continuing operating revenue excluding capital grants 
and contributions   1

26,610 (2.86)% 12.81% > 0.00%

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding all grants and 
contributions   1 12,933
Total continuing operating revenue   1 33,631

38.46% 52.08% > 60.00%

3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions 8,933
Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilities 2,713 3.29x 3.95x > 1.50x

4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result before capital excluding interest and 
depreciation/impairment/amortisation   1 3,566
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) plus 
borrowing costs (Income Statement)

524 6.81x 17.59x > 2.00x

5. Rates and annual charges outstanding 
percentage
Rates and annual charges outstanding 185
Rates and annual charges collectable 3,233 5.72% 21.10% < 10.00%

6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year’s cash and cash equivalents plus all term 
deposits 8,727
Monthly payments from cash flow of operating and financing 
activities

2,071
4.21
mths

4.41
mths

> 3.00
mths

§TocItem§§Subnote§

(1) Excludes fair value increments on investment properties, reversal of revaluation decrements, reversal of impairment losses on 
receivables, net gain on sale of assets and net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method and includes 
pensioner rate subsidies

(2) Excludes impairment/revaluation decrements of IPPE, fair value decrements on investment properties, net loss on disposal of assets 
and net loss on share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method

G3 Statement of performance measures

G3-1 Statement of performance measures – consolidated results
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 General Indicators   3 Water Indicators Sewer Indicators Benchmark
$ '000 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020  

1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding capital grants and contributions less 
operating expenses   1, 2

Total continuing operating revenue excluding capital grants and contributions   1
(0.67)% 15.19% (64.81)% (50.63)% 33.26% 27.81% > 0.00%

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding capital grants and contributions   1

Total continuing operating revenue   1 35.62% 50.10% 100.00% 100.00% 61.59% 69.42% > 60.00%

3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions
Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilities 3.29x 3.95x ∞ ∞ ∞ ∞ > 1.50x

4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result before capital excluding interest and 
depreciation/impairment/amortisation   1

Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) plus borrowing costs (Income 
Statement)

6.48x 16.93x ∞ ∞ ∞ ∞ > 2.00x

5. Rates and annual charges outstanding percentage
Rates and annual charges outstanding
Rates and annual charges collectable (14.14)% 27.90% 29.00% 0.00% 4.13% 0.00% < 10.00%

6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year’s cash and cash equivalents plus all term deposits
Monthly payments from cash flow of operating and financing activities

3.51
mths

3.41
mths

10.09
mths

19.66
mths

37.31
mths

39.36
mths

> 3.00
mths

§TocItem§
§Subnote§

(1) - (2) Refer to Notes at Note 25a above.
(3) General fund refers to all of Council's activities except for its water and sewer activities which are listed separately.

G3-2 Statement of performance measures by fund
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Principal place of business:

§TocItem§§Subnote§

21 Reid Street
Wilcannia NSW 2836

Mailing Address:
Contact details

PO Box 165
Wilcannia NSW 2836

Opening hours:
9:00am - 5:00pm
Monday to Friday

Telephone: 08 8083 8900
Facsimile: 08 8091 5994

Internet: www.centraldarling.nsw.gv.au
Email: council@centraldrling.nsw.gv.au

General Manager
Officers

Greg Hill

Responsible Accounting Officer
Gordon Seeto

Public Officer
Gordon Seeto

Auditors
Audit Office of NSW
Level 19 Tower 2 Darling Park
201 Sussex St
Sydney NSW 2000

ABN: 65 061 502 429
Other information

H Additional Council disclosures (unaudited)

H1-1 Council information and contact details
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
Report on the general purpose financial statements 

Central Darling Shire Council 

 

To the Administrator of the Central Darling Shire Council 

Opinion 
 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Central Darling Shire Council (the Council), 
which comprise the Statement by the Administrator and Management, the Income Statement and 
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2021, the Statement of Financial 
Position as at 30 June 2021, the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In my opinion: 

• the Council’s accounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of the 
Local Government Act 1993, Chapter 13, Part 3, Division 2 (the Division) 

• the financial statements: 
- have been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of this 

Division 
- are consistent with the Council’s accounting records 
- present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Council as at 

30 June 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 

• all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained 
• no material deficiencies in the accounting records or financial statements have come to light 

during the audit. 
 

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report. 

Basis for Opinion 
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the 
standards are described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ 
section of my report. 

I am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the: 

• Australian Auditing Standards 
• Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for 

Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)’ (APES 110). 
 

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110. 
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Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of 
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by: 

• providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an 
Auditor-General 

• mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils 
• precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services. 
 

I believe the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 

Other Information 
The Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2021 includes other information in addition to 
the financial statements and my Independent Auditor’s Report thereon. The Councillors are 
responsible for the other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor’s Report, the other 
information I have received comprise the special purpose financial statements and Special Schedules 
(the Schedules). 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. Accordingly, I do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local 
Government Act 1993, I have separately expressed an opinion on the special purpose financial 
statements and Special Schedule - Permissible income for general rates. 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude there is a material misstatement of the other 
information, I must report that fact. 

I have nothing to report in this regard. 

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements 
The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1993, and for such 
internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
My objectives are to: 

• obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error 

• issue an Independent Auditor’s Report including my opinion. 
 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or 
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take 
based on the financial statements. 
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A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing 
and Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. The 
description forms part of my auditor’s report. 

The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance: 

• that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically 
• on the Original Budget information included in the Income Statement, Statement of Cash Flows, 

and Note B5-1 Material budget variations 
• on the Special Schedules. A separate opinion has been provided on Special 

Schedule - Permissible income for general rates  
• about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial 

statements on any website where they may be presented 
• about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements. 
 

 

 

Manuel Moncada 
Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales 

29 October 2021 
SYDNEY 
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Robert Stewart 
Administrator 
Central Darling Shire Council 
PO Box 165  
WILCANNIA NSW 2836 

 

 

29 October 2021 

 

Dear Administrator 

 

Report on the Conduct of the Audit 

for the year ended 30 June 2021 

Central Darling Shire Council 
 

I have audited the general purpose financial statements (GPFS) of the Central Darling Shire Council 
(the Council) for the year ended 30 June 2021 as required by section 415 of the Local Government 
Act 1993 (the Act). 

I expressed an unmodified opinion on the Council’s GPFS. 

This Report on the Conduct of the Audit (the Report) for the Council for the year ended 30 June 2021 
is issued in accordance with section 417 of the Act. This Report should be read in conjunction with my 
audit opinion on the GPFS issued under section 417(2) of the Act. 

SIGNIFICANT AUDIT ISSUES AND OBSERVATIONS 
Rural fire-fighting equipment not recognised in the financial statements 
Council did not record rural fire-fighting equipment in the financial statements.  

Rural fire fighting equipment, specifically the red fleet vehicles, is controlled by the Council and should 
be recognised in their financial statements. This is supported by the requirements of the Rural Fires 
Act 1997 and service agreements between councils and the RFS. 

The Department of Planning, Industry and Environment (inclusive of the Office of Local Government) 
confirmed in the ‘Report on Local Government 2020’ (tabled in Parliament on 27 May 2021) their view 
that rural firefighting equipment is not controlled by the NSW Rural Fire Service. 

  

Contact: Manuel Moncada 

Phone no: 02 9275 7333 

Our ref: D2123485/1711 
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INCOME STATEMENT 
Operating result 
 
 

 2021 2020 Variance 

 $m $m % 

Rates and annual charges 
revenue 2.4 2.3 

 

Grants and 
contributions revenue 20.7 14.3 

 

Operating result 
from continuing operations 6.1 6.1 

 

Net operating result 
before capital grants and 
contributions 

(0.9) 3.4 
 

 
 

Council’s operating result ($6.1 million including the effect of depreciation and amortisation expense of 
$4.3 million) was consistent with the 2019–20 result. 

The net operating result before capital grants and contributions (deficit of $0.9 million) was $4.3 million 
lower than the 2019–20 result. This was mainly due to a reduction in revenue from Transport for NSW 
works. 

Rates and annual charges revenue of $2.4 million increased by $0.1 million (4.3 per cent) in 2020–
2021. 

Grants and contributions revenue ($20.7 million) increased by $6.4 million (44.8 per cent) in 2020–
2021. This was mainly due to receipts of funding for storm/flood damage and additional revenue for 
capital projects. 
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 

• The Statement of Cash Flows 
illustrates the flow of cash and 
cash equivalents moving in and 
out of Council during the year 
and reveals that cash increased 
by $952,000 to $8.7 million at the 
close of the year. 
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FINANCIAL POSITION 
 

Cash and investments 
Cash and investments 2021 2020 Commentary 

 $m $m  

Total cash, cash 
equivalents and 
investments 

8.7 7.8 • External restrictions include unspent specific 
purpose grants and domestic waste management 
charges, and water and sewerage funds 

• Council has not set aside any internally restricted 
funds 

Restricted cash and 
investments: 

  

• External restrictions 6.5 3.0 

• Internal restrictions  - - 
 

PERFORMANCE  
Performance measures 
The following section provides an overview of the Council’s performance against the performance 
measures and performance benchmarks set by the Office of Local Government (OLG) within the 
Department of Planning, Industry and Environment. 
 

Operating performance ratio 

The ‘operating performance ratio’ 
measures how well council contained 
operating expenditure within 
operating revenue (excluding capital 
grants and contributions, fair value 
adjustments, and reversal of 
revaluation decrements). The 
benchmark set by OLG is greater 
than zero per cent. 
The Council did not meet the OLG 
benchmark for the current reporting 
period. 
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Own source operating revenue ratio 

The ‘own source operating revenue 
ratio’ measures council’s fiscal 
flexibility and the degree to which it 
relies on external funding sources 
such as operating grants and 
contributions. The benchmark set by 
OLG is greater than 60 per cent.  
The Council did not meet the OLG 
benchmark for the current reporting 
period. 
 

 
 

Unrestricted current ratio 

The ‘unrestricted current ratio’ is 
specific to local government and 
represents council’s ability to meet its 
short-term obligations as they fall due. 
The benchmark set by OLG is greater 
than 1.5 times.  
The Council exceeded the OLG 
benchmark for the current reporting 
period. 
 

 
 

Debt service cover ratio 

The ‘debt service cover ratio’ 
measures the operating cash to 
service debt including interest, 
principal and lease payments. The 
benchmark set by OLG is greater 
than two times.  
The Council exceeded the OLG 
benchmark for the current reporting 
period.  
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Rates and annual charges outstanding percentage 

The ‘rates and annual charges 
outstanding percentage’ assesses the 
impact of uncollected rates and 
annual charges on council’s liquidity 
and the adequacy of debt recovery 
efforts. The benchmark set by OLG is 
less than 10 per cent for regional and 
rural councils.  
The Council met the OLG benchmark 
for the current reporting period.  
 

 

 

Cash expense cover ratio 

This liquidity ratio indicates the 
number of months the council can 
continue paying for its immediate 
expenses without additional cash 
inflow. The benchmark set by OLG is 
greater than three months.  
The Council met the OLG benchmark 
for the current reporting period.  
 

 
 

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment renewals 
• Council’s asset renewal additions for the year were $5.1 million compared $5.2 million for the 

prior year 
• The level of asset renewals during the year represented 131 percent of the total depreciation 

expense ($3.9 million) for the year. 
 

OTHER MATTERS 
 

Legislative compliance 
My audit procedures did not identify any instances of non-compliance with legislative requirements or 
a material deficiency in the Council’s accounting records or financial statements. The Council’s: 

• accounting records were maintained in a manner and form to allow the GPFS to be prepared 
and effectively audited 

• staff provided all accounting records and information relevant to the audit. 
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The Council’s: 

• accounting records were maintained in a manner and form that facilitated the preparation and 
the effective audit of the general purpose financial statements 

• staff provided all accounting records and information relevant to the audit. 
 

 

 

Manuel Moncada 
Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales 

cc: Greg Hill, General Manager 
Jay Nankivell, Chair of Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee 
Kiersten Fishburn, Secretary of the Department of Planning, Industry and Environment 
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Statement of Financial Position of water supply business activity      
Statement of Financial Position of sewerage business activity      

Note – Significant Accounting Policies      

Auditor's Report on Special Purpose Financial Statements      

i. These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Office of Local
Government in fulfilling their requirements under National Competition Policy.

ii. The principle of competitive neutrality is based on the concept of a ‘level playing field’ between persons/entities competing
in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitors.

Essentially, the principle is that government businesses, whether Commonwealth, state or local, should operate without
net competitive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public ownership.

iii. For Council, the principle of competitive neutrality and public reporting applies only to declared business activities.

These include (a) those activities classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business activities being water
supply, sewerage services, abattoirs, gas production and reticulation, and (b) those activities with a turnover of more
than $2 million that Council has formally declared as a business activity (defined as Category 1 activities.

iv. In preparing these financial statements for Council’s self-classified Category 1 businesses and ABS-defined activities,
councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cost attribution including tax-equivalent regime
payments and debt guarantee fees (where the business benefits from Council's borrowing position by comparison with
commercial rates).

Background
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Central Darling Shire Council | Income Statement of water supply business activity | For the year ended 30 June 2021

§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 2021 2020

Income from continuing operations
Access charges 653 641
User charges 457 345
Interest 23 53
Other income 32 –
Total income from continuing operations 1,165 1,039

§Subnote§

Expenses from continuing operations
Materials and services 659 929
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 668 636
Other expenses 593 –
Total expenses from continuing operations 1,920 1,565

Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts (755) (526)

Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts (755) (526)

Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax (755) (526)

Surplus (deficit) after tax (755) (526)

Plus accumulated surplus 11,006 11,532
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
Closing accumulated surplus 10,251 11,006

Return on capital % (3.0)% (2.1)%
Subsidy from Council 1,134 750

Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax (755) (526)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes – –

Potential dividend calculated from surplus – –

Central Darling Shire Council

Income Statement of water supply business activity
for the year ended 30 June 2021
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Central Darling Shire Council | Income Statement of sewerage business activity | For the year ended 30 June 2021

§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 2021 2020

Income from continuing operations
Access charges 270 243
Fees 1 –
Interest 3 9
Grants and contributions provided for non-capital purposes – 68
Other income 207 –
Total income from continuing operations 481 320

§Subnote§

Expenses from continuing operations
Materials and services 112 145
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 97 86
Other expenses 112 –
Total expenses from continuing operations 321 231

Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 160 89

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 300 43
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 460 132

Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 460 132

Less: corporate taxation equivalent [based on result before capital] (42) (24)
Surplus (deficit) after tax 418 108

Plus accumulated surplus 1,789 1,657
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
– Corporate taxation equivalent 42 24
Closing accumulated surplus 2,249 1,789

Return on capital % 3.6% 2.2%
Subsidy from Council – –

Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax 418 108
Less: capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions) (300) (43)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 118 65

Potential dividend calculated from surplus 59 33

Central Darling Shire Council

Income Statement of sewerage business activity
for the year ended 30 June 2021
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Central Darling Shire Council | Statement of Financial Position of water supply business activity | For the year ended 30 June 2021

§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 2021 2020

ASSETS

§Subnote§

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,213 1,522
Receivables 690 1,019
Total current assets 1,903 2,541

Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 25,441 25,414
Total non-current assets 25,441 25,414

Total assets 27,344 27,955

Net assets 27,344 27,955

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 10,251 11,006
Revaluation reserves 17,093 16,949
Total equity 27,344 27,955

Central Darling Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position of water supply business activity
as at 30 June 2021
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Central Darling Shire Council | Statement of Financial Position of sewerage business activity | For the year ended 30 June 2021

§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 2021 2020

ASSETS

§Subnote§

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 740 551
Receivables 111 172
Total current assets 851 723

Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 4,453 3,981
Total non-current assets 4,453 3,981

Total assets 5,304 4,704

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Contract liabilities 116 –
Total current liabilities 116 –

Total liabilities 116 –

Net assets 5,188 4,704

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 2,249 1,789
Revaluation reserves 2,939 2,915
Total equity 5,188 4,704

Central Darling Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position of sewerage business activity
as at 30 June 2021
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§Note/Subtotal§

A statement summarising the supplemental accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the special purpose financial
statements (SPFS) for National Competition Policy (NCP) reporting purposes follows.

These financial statements are SPFS prepared for use by Council and the Office of Local Government. For the purposes of
these statements, the Council is a non-reporting not-for-profit entity.

The figures presented in these special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition
and measurement criteria of relevant Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and Australian Accounting Interpretations.

The disclosures in these special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1993 (Act), the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 (Regulation) and the Local Government Code of Accounting
Practice and Financial Reporting.

The statements are prepared on an accruals basis. They are based on historic costs and do not take into account changing
money values or, except where specifically stated, fair value of non-current assets. Certain taxes and other costs, appropriately
described, have been imputed for the purposes of the National Competition Policy.

§TocItem§§TocItem§
§Subnote§

The Statement of Financial Position includes notional assets/liabilities receivable from/payable to Council's general fund. These
balances reflect a notional intra-entity funding arrangement with the declared business activities.

Council has adopted the principle of ‘competitive neutrality’ in its business activities as part of the National Competition Policy
which is being applied throughout Australia at all levels of government. The framework for its application is set out in the June
1996 NSW Government Policy statement titled 'Application of National Competition Policy to Local Government'. The Pricing
and Costing for Council Businesses – A Guide to Competitive Neutrality issued by the Office of Local Government in July
1997 has also been adopted.

National Competition Policy

The pricing and costing guidelines outline the process for identifying and allocating costs to activities and provide a standard
for disclosure requirements. These disclosures are reflected in Council’s pricing and/or financial reporting systems and include
taxation equivalents, Council subsidies, and returns on investments (rate of return and dividends paid).

In accordance with Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses – A Guide to Competitive Neutrality, Council has declared that
the following are to be considered as business activities:

Declared business activities

Category 1
(where gross operating turnover is over $2 million)

Nil

Category 2
(where gross operating turnover is less than $2 million)

a. Combined Water Supply
The Central Darling Shire Water Supply comprises the operations and assets of Council’s Water Supply System which services
the towns of Wilcannia, Ivanhoe and White Cliffs.

b. Sewerage Services
The Central Darling Shire Sewerage Service comprises the whole of the operations and assets of Council’s Sewerage
Reticulation and Treatment System servicing the township of Wilcannia.

Council is liable to pay various taxes and financial duties. Where this is the case, they are disclosed as a cost of operations
just like all other costs.

Taxation equivalent charges

However, where Council does not pay some taxes which are generally paid by private sector businesses, such as income
tax, these equivalent tax payments have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities and are reflected in Special
Purpose Finanncial Statements.

For the purposes of disclosing comparative information relevant to the private sector equivalent, the following taxation
equivalents have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities (this does not include Council’s non-business
activities):

continued on next page ... 

Note – Significant Accounting Policies
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Notional rate applied (%)

Corporate income tax rate – 26%

Land tax – the first $692,000 of combined land values attracts 0%. For the combined land values in excess of $692,001 up
to $4,231,000 the rate is 1.6% + $100. For the remaining combined land value that exceeds $4,231,000 a premium marginal
rate of 2.0% applies.

Payroll tax – 5.45% on the value of taxable salaries and wages in excess of $850,000.

In accordance with the Department of Industry (DoI) – Water guidelines, a payment for the amount calculated as the annual
tax equivalent charges (excluding income tax) must be paid from water supply and sewerage business activities.

The payment of taxation equivalent charges, referred to in the DoI – Water guidelines as a ‘dividend for taxation equivalent’,
may be applied for any purpose allowed under the Local Government Act, 1993.

Achievement of substantial compliance to the DoI – Water guidelines is not a prerequisite for the payment of the tax equivalent
charges, however the payment must not exceed $3 per assessment.

An income tax equivalent has been applied on the profits of the business activities.

Income tax

Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for the purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs to be taken into account in terms
of assessing the rate of return required on capital invested.

Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a pre-tax level - gain/(loss) from ordinary activities before capital amounts,
as would be applied by a private sector competitor. That is, it should include a provision equivalent to the corporate income
tax rate, currently 26%.

Income tax is only applied where a gain/ (loss) from ordinary activities before capital amounts has been achieved.

Since the taxation equivalent is notional – that is, it is payable to Council as the ‘owner’ of business operations - it represents
an internal payment and has no effect on the operations of the Council. Accordingly, there is no need for disclosure of internal
charges in the SPFS.

The rate applied of 26% is the equivalent company tax rate prevalent at reporting date. No adjustments have been made for
variations that have occurred during the year.

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges for all Category 1 businesses has been applied to all assets owned, or
exclusively used by the business activity.

Local government rates and charges

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that Council business activities face ‘true’ commercial borrowing costs in line with
private sector competitors. In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, Council has determined what the differential borrowing
rate would have been between the commercial rate and Council’s borrowing rate for its business activities.

Loan and debt guarantee fees

Government policy requires that subsidies provided to customers, and the funding of those subsidies, must be explicitly
disclosed. Subsidies occur where Council provides services on a less than cost recovery basis. This option is exercised on a
range of services in order for Council to meet its community service obligations. The overall effect of subsidies is contained
within the Income Statements of business activities.

(i) Subsidies

The NCP policy statement requires that councils with Category 1 businesses ‘would be expected to generate a return on capital
funds employed that is comparable to rates of return for private businesses operating in a similar field’.

(ii) Return on investments (rate of return)

Funds are subsequently available for meeting commitments or financing future investment strategies. The rate of return is
disclosed for each of Council’s business activities on the Income Statement.

The rate of return is calculated as follows:

continued on next page ... 
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Operating result before capital income + interest expense

Written down value of I,PP&E as at 30 June

As a minimum, business activities should generate a return equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate which is 1.49%
at 30/6/21.

Council is not required to pay dividends to either itself (as owner of a range of businesses) or to any external entities.

(iii) Dividends

Local government water supply and sewerage businesses are permitted to pay an annual dividend from its water supply or
sewerage business surplus.

Each dividend must be calculated and approved in accordance with the Department of Industry – Water guidelines and must
not exceed:

• 50% of this surplus in any one year, or
• the number of water supply or sewerage assessments at 30 June 2021 multiplied by $30 (less the payment for tax

equivalent charges, not exceeding $3 per assessment).

In accordance with the Department of Industry – Water guidelines a Dividend Payment form, Statement of Compliance,
Unqualified Independent Financial Audit Report and Compliance Audit Report are required to be submitted to the Department
of Industry – Water.

Note – Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
Report on the special purpose financial statements 

Central Darling Shire Council 

 

To the Administrator of the Central Darling Shire Council 

Opinion 
I have audited the accompanying special purpose financial statements (the financial statements) of 
Central Darling Shire Council’s (the Council) Declared Business Activities, which comprise the 
Statement by Councillors and Management, the Income Statement of each Declared Business Activity 

for the year ended 30 June 2021, the Statement of Financial Position of each Declared Business 
Activity as at 30 June 2021 and the Significant accounting policies note. 

The Declared Business Activities of the Council are: 

• Water Supply Business Activity 
• Sewerage Business Activity. 
 

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Council’s declared Business Activities as at 30 June 2021, and their financial performance for the 
year then ended, in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards described in the Significant 
accounting policies note and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial 
Reporting 2020–21 (LG Code). 

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report. 

Basis for Opinion 
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the 
standards are described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ 
section of my report.  

I am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the: 

• Australian Auditing Standards  
• Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for 

Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)’ (APES 110). 
 

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110. 

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of 
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by: 

• providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an 
Auditor-General 

• mandating the Auditor-General as the auditor of councils 
• precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services. 
 

I believe the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion.  
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Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting  
Without modifying my opinion, I draw attention to the Significant accounting policies note to the 
financial statements which describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements have been 
prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Council’s financial reporting responsibilities under the LG 
Code. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.  

Other Information 
The Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2021 includes other information in addition to 
the financial statements and my Independent Auditor’s Report thereon. The Councillors are 
responsible for the other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor’s Report, the other 
information I have received comprise the general purpose financial statements and Special Schedules 
(the Schedules). 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. Accordingly, I do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local 
Government Act 1993, I have separately expressed an opinion on the general purpose financial 
statements and Special Schedule ‘Permissible income for general rates’.  

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.  

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude there is a material misstatement of the other 
information, I must report that fact.  

I have nothing to report in this regard. 

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements  
The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
and for determining that the accounting policies, described in the Significant accounting policies note 
to the financial statements, are appropriate to meet the requirements in the LG Code. The Councillors’ 
responsibility also includes such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
My objectives are to: 

• obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error 

• issue an Independent Auditor’s Report including my opinion. 
 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or 
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take 
based on the financial statements. 

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing 
and Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. The 
description forms part of my auditor’s report. 
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The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance: 

• that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically  
• about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial 

statements on any website where they may be presented 
• about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements. 
 

 

 

Manuel Moncada 

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales 

29 October 2021 
SYDNEY
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§Note/Subtotal§

Calculation Calculation
$ '000 Notes 2020/21 2021/22

Notional general income calculation   1

Last year notional general income yield a 835 857
Plus or minus adjustments   2 b (3) 5
Notional general income c = a + b 832 862

§Subnote§

Permissible income calculation
Or rate peg percentage e 2.60% 2.00%

Or plus rate peg amount i = e x (c + g) 22 17
Sub-total k = (c + g + h + i + j) 854 879

Plus (or minus) last year’s carry forward total l 3 –
Sub-total n = (l + m) 3 –

Total permissible income o = k + n 857 879

Less notional general income yield p 857 884
Catch-up or (excess) result q = o – p – (6)

Carry forward to next year   3 t = q + r + s – (6)

Notes

(1) The notional general income will not reconcile with rate income in the financial statements in the corresponding year. The statements are
reported on an accrual accounting basis which include amounts that relate to prior years’ rates income.

(2) Adjustments account for changes in the number of assessments and any increase or decrease in land value occurring during the year. 
The adjustments are called ‘supplementary valuations’ as defined in the Valuation of Land Act 1916.

(3) Carry forward amounts which are in excess (an amount that exceeds the permissible income) require Ministerial approval by order
published in the NSW Government Gazette in accordance with section 512 of the Local Government Act 1993. The OLG will extract
these amounts from Council’s Permissible income for general rates Statement in the financial data return (FDR) to administer this
process.

Central Darling Shire Council

Permissible income for general rates
 

Page 3 of 11

Central Darling Shire Council

Permissible income for general rates
 



 

 
 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
Special Schedule – Permissible income for general rates 

Central Darling Shire Council 

 

To the Administrator of Central Darling Shire Council 

Opinion 
I have audited the accompanying Special Schedule – Permissible income for general rates (the 
Schedule) of Central Darling Shire Council (the Council) for the year ending 30 June 2022. 

In my opinion, the Schedule is prepared, in all material respects in accordance with the requirements 
of the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting 2020–21 (LG Code) 
and is in accordance with the books and records of the Council.  

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report. 

Basis for Opinion 
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the 
standards are described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule’ section of my 
report.  

I am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the: 

• Australian Auditing Standards 
• Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for 

Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)’ (APES 110). 
 

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110. 

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of 
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by: 

• providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an 
Auditor-General 

• mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils 
• precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services. 
 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion.  

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting  
Without modifying my opinion, I draw attention to the special purpose framework used to prepare the 
Schedule. The Schedule has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Council’s reporting 
obligations under the LG Code. As a result, the Schedule may not be suitable for another purpose.  
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Other Information 
The Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2021 includes other information in addition to 
the Schedule and my Independent Auditor’s Report thereon. The Councillors are responsible for the 
other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor’s Report, the other information I have 
received comprise the general purpose financial statements, special purpose financial statements and 
Special Schedule ‘Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2021’. 

My opinion on the Schedule does not cover the other information. Accordingly, I do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local 
Government Act 1993, I have separately expressed an opinion on the general purpose financial 
statements and the special purpose financial statements. 

In connection with my audit of the Schedule, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Schedule or my 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude there is a material misstatement of the other 
information, I must report that fact. 

I have nothing to report in this regard. 

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Schedule  
The Councillors are responsible for the preparation of the Schedule in accordance with the LG Code. 
The Councillors’ responsibility also includes such internal control as the Councillors determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of the Schedule that is free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Schedule, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule  
My objectives are to: 

• obtain reasonable assurance whether the Schedule as a whole is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error 

• issue an Independent Auditor’s Report including my opinion. 
 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or 
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take 
based on the Schedule. 

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the Schedule is located at the Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar8.pdf. The 
description forms part of my auditor’s report.  

  

Page 5 of 11

Central Darling Shire Council | Special Schedules 2021



 
 

The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance: 

• that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically  
• about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited Schedule on any 

website where it may be presented 
• about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the Schedule. 
 

 

 

Manuel Moncada 

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales 

29 October 2021 
SYDNEY 

 

 

Page 6 of 11

Central Darling Shire Council | Special Schedules 2021



Central Darling Shire Council | Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2021 | For the year ended 30 June 2021

§Note/Subtotal§

Asset Class Asset Category

Estimated cost
to bring assets
to satisfactory 

standard

Estimated cost
to bring to the 

agreed level of 
service set by 

Council

2020/21 
Required 

maintenance   a

2020/21
Actual

maintenance
Net carrying 

amount

Gross 
replacement 

cost (GRC)

Assets in condition as a percentage of 
gross replacement cost

$ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 1 2 3 4 5

Buildings 2,015 – 120 120 12,265 34,673 5.0% 65.0% 25.0% 5.0% 0.0%
Buildings – non-specialised 403 – 180 180 – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Buildings – specialised 78 – 60 60 – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Other – – – – – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Community Services 1,066 – 10 10 – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Council Housing 2,210 – 250 259 – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Water 364 – 10 10 – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Economic Activity 676 – – – – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Transport 13 – – – – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Amenitites / Toilets 33 – 70 70 – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Buildings

Sub-total 6,858 – 700 709 12,265 34,673 5.0% 65.0% 25.0% 5.0% 0.0%

§Subnote§

Other structures – – – 64 3,514 4,229 20.0% 0.0% 80.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Other – – – – – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Other 
structures

Sub-total – – – 64 3,514 4,229 20.0% 0.0% 80.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Roads – – – – – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Sealed roads 780 – 400 1,305 34,034 49,845 0.0% 60.0% 20.0% 20.0% 0.0%
Unsealed roads 7,121 – 3,200 5,654 58,058 61,639 0.0% 50.0% 25.0% 25.0% 0.0%
Bridges 260 – 15 – 13,371 19,510 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Footpaths 520 – 45 40 1,049 1,861 0.0% 25.0% 50.0% 25.0% 0.0%
Other road assets 260 – 100 42 2,388 4,872 0.0% 50.0% 50.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Bulk earthworks – – – – – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Other – – – – – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Kerb and Gutter 260 – 25 7 2,235 3,467 0.0% 60.0% 20.0% 20.0% 0.0%
Aerodromes 250 – 180 130 7,052 11,351 0.0% 75.0% 25.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Other road assets (incl. bulk earth 
works) – – – – – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Roads

Sub-total 9,451 – 3,965 7,178 118,187 152,545 0.0% 61.4% 21.2% 17.4% 0.0%

Water supply network 3,200 – 400 137 5,131 13,896 0.0% 0.0% 25.0% 50.0% 25.0%
Other – – – – 57 57 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Treatment Plants 5,500 – 500 333 8,129 9,512 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 50.0% 50.0%
Bores 39 – 30 – 326 1,195 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0%

continued on next page ... 
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Asset Class Asset Category

Estimated cost
to bring assets
to satisfactory 

standard

Estimated cost
to bring to the 

agreed level of 
service set by 

Council

2020/21 
Required 

maintenance   a

2020/21
Actual

maintenance
Net carrying 

amount

Gross 
replacement 

cost (GRC)

Assets in condition as a percentage of 
gross replacement cost

$ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 1 2 3 4 5

Water supply 
network

Weirs, Storage Tanks, Dams
8,000 – 150 93 7,538 17,035 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

Water supply 
network

Pump Station
585 – 175 7 4,179 4,760 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0%

Sub-total 17,324 – 1,255 570 25,360 46,455 0.1% 0.0% 10.1% 35.4% 54.4%

Water supply 
network

Sewerage network 442 – 40 10 870 1,304 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0%
Other 160 – 125 42 264 428 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0%
Pumping Station 600 – 95 60 1,922 3,503 30.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% (30.0%)
Treatment Plants 100 – 20 – 796 1,005 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0%

Sewerage 
network

Sub-total 1,302 – 280 112 3,852 6,240 16.8% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% (16.8%)

Stormwater drainage – – – – – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Other – – – 93 – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Box Culverts 4 – 4 4 12 38 0.0% 0.0% 50.0% 50.0% 0.0%
Pipes 12 – 5 5 348 858 0.0% 0.0% 50.0% 50.0% 0.0%
Pits 8 – 5 5 80 126 0.0% 0.0% 50.0% 50.0% 0.0%
Outlets 25 – 10 10 16 20 0.0% 0.0% 50.0% 50.0% 0.0%
Gross Pollutant Traps 15 – 7 7 213 337 0.0% 0.0% 50.0% 50.0% 0.0%

Stormwater 
drainage

Sub-total 64 – 31 124 669 1,379 0.0% 0.0% 50.0% 50.0% 0.0%

Swimming pools 550 – 550 145 – 2,800 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%
Other – – – – – – 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Recreation 300 – 150 96 150 2,250 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

Open space / 
recreational 
assets

Sub-total 850 – 700 241 150 5,050 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

  Total – all assets 35,849 – 6,931 8,998 163,997 250,571 1.5% 46.4% 19.8% 20.6% 11.7%

(a) Required maintenance is the amount identified in Council’s asset management plans.

continued on next page ... 
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Infrastructure asset condition assessment ‘key’

# Condition Integrated planning and reporting (IP&R) description
1 Excellent/very good No work required (normal maintenance)
2 Good Only minor maintenance work required
3 Satisfactory Maintenance work required
4 Poor Renewal required
5 Very poor Urgent renewal/upgrading required

Central Darling Shire Council
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Central Darling Shire Council | Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2021 | For the year ended 30 June 2021

§Note/Subtotal§

Infrastructure asset performance indicators (consolidated)   *

 Amounts Indicator Indicator Benchmark
$ '000 2021 2021 2020  

Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio
Asset renewals   1 5,078
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 3,736 135.92% 88.81% >= 100.00%

Infrastructure backlog ratio
Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory standard 35,849
Net carrying amount of infrastructure assets 170,908 20.98% 40.43% < 2.00%

Asset maintenance ratio
Actual asset maintenance 8,998
Required asset maintenance 6,931 129.82% 73.12% > 100.00%

Cost to bring assets to agreed service level
Estimated cost to bring assets to
an agreed service level set by Council –
Gross replacement cost 250,571

0.00% 0.00%

(*) All asset performance indicators are calculated using classes identified in the previous table.

(1) Asset renewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent capacity/performance  as opposed to
the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that increases capacity/performance.
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§Note/Subtotal§

Infrastructure asset performance indicators (by fund)

 General fund Water fund Sewer fund Benchmark
$ '000 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020  

Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio
Asset renewals   1

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 164.86% 110.41% 25.00% 0.00% 13.40% 0.00% >= 100.00%

Infrastructure backlog ratio
Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory standard
Net carrying amount of infrastructure assets 12.21% 35.33% 68.31% 68.38% 29.24% 33.28% < 2.00%

Asset maintenance ratio
Actual asset maintenance
Required asset maintenance 154.11% 75.00% 45.42% 71.55% 40.00% 43.93% > 100.00%

Cost to bring assets to agreed service level
Estimated cost to bring assets to an agreed service level set by 
Council
Gross replacement cost

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

(1) Asset renewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent capacity/performance  as opposed to the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that
increases capacity/performance.
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